
Meeting of:  Rochdale Township Committee
Date: Thursday, 29th June, 2017
Time: 6.15 pm.

Venue: No's 1 & 2 Committee Rooms - Rochdale Town Hall, 
Rochdale, OL16 1AB

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal or 
personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of those 
interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR OF ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP 
COMMITTEE 2017-18 

The Township Committee will be requested to appoint a Vice-Chair for 
the 2017/18 Municipal Year 

4.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business which, 
by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should be 
considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

5.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

6.  GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE - UPDATE 

7.  OPEN FORUM (6.15-6.45PM) 

Half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to raise any 
issues relevant to the business of the Committee and the Township. 

8.  MINUTES 3 - 7

To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Rochdale Township 
Committee held on 22nd March 2017.  

Public Document Pack



9.  ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP DELEGATION ARRANGEMENTS AND 
APPOINTMENTS 2017/18 

8 - 12

The Township Committee will be requested to confirm its delegation 
arrangements and appointments for 2017/18. 

10.  ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS REVIEW 13 - 53

The Township Committee will be requested to consider a review of 
funding allocated in 2016/2017 and the options for the allocation of 
funds in 2017/18. 

11.  CATLEY LANE HEAD CONSERVATION AREA APPRAISAL 54 - 94

The Township Committee will be requested to consider initiating public 
consultation of the Catley Lane Head draft conservation area appraisal.  

12.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 
interest would not be served in publishing the information. 

PRIVATE ITEMS

13.  DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS LAND AT LINNET HILL, ROCHDALE 95 - 97

The Township Committee will be requested to consider the release of 
land at Linnet Hill, Rochdale for disposal. 

Rochdale Township Committee Members
Councillor Ali Ahmed    Councillor Wendy Cocks    Councillor Kathleen Nickson    
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed    Councillor Ian Duckworth    Councillor Shaun O'Neill  (Chair)  
Councillor Shakil Ahmed    Councillor Richard Farnell    Councillor Aasim Rashid    
Councillor Daalat Ali    Councillor James Gartside    Councillor Billy Sheerin    
Councillor Sultan Ali    Councillor Kieran Heakin    Councillor Patricia Sullivan    
Councillor Cecile Biant    Councillor Michael Holly    Councillor Shah Wazir    
Councillor Surinder Biant    Councillor Jean Hornby    Councillor Peter Winkler    
Councillor Allen Brett    Councillor Jane Howard    Councillor Sameena Zaheer    
Councillor Lynne Brosnan    Councillor Daniel Meredith    Councillor Mohammed Zaman  

For more information about this meeting, please contact 
Caroline Denyer
Tel: 01706 924717 Email: caroline.denyer2@rochdale.gov.uk 



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 22 March 2017

PRESENT:  Councillor Shaun O'Neill (Chair); Councillors Iftikhar Ahmed, 
Shakil Ahmed, Daalat Ali, Sultan Ali, Cecile Biant, Surinder Biant, Brett, 
Brosnan, Cocks, Duckworth, Farnell, James Gartside, Heakin, Holly, Howard, 
Meredith, Nickson, Rashid, Sheerin, Sullivan, Wazir, Winkler, Zaheer and 
Zaman

OFFICERS:   D. Bowler (Assistant Director – Place), M. Reynolds and V. 
White (Neighbourhoods Directorate), N. Barton (Economy Directorate) and M. 
Garraway (Resources Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:   P. Wood (Greater Manchester Police) and eight 
members of public.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Ali Ahmed and Councillor Hornby

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
58 There were no declarations of interest.

GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE - UPDATE
59  Paul Wood (Greater Manchester Police) and Mark Reynolds (Community 
Safety Team) updated the Township Committee on activities and initiatives that were 
undertaken by Greater Manchester Police in the Rochdale Township Division.

The Committee were advised that Greater Manchester Police had undertaken 
several operations over the previous weekend in Rochdale town centre, which were 
designed to combat anti-social behaviour. Members of the Committee were advised 
that there would be an increased police presence over the coming weeks within the 
Town Centre to continue to tackle anti-social behaviour.    

Members of the Committee in discussing the presentation sought details of what 
practical measures would be required to enforce proposed Public Space Protection 
Orders in the Town Centre.   

Following requests by Members at the meeting of Rochdale Township Committee 
held on 11th January 2017 that, in light of a number of serious road accidents that 
had occurred in Rochdale Township the Police be requested to undertake exercises 
designed to increase road safety and to decrease the number of motor accidents in 
the Township and to monitor traffic movements. Representatives of Greater 
Manchester Police advised Members of support received from tactical traffic units in 
the Township and that further consideration would be given to practical support in the 
coming months.   

Resolved – That the Greater Manchester Police update be noted and welcomed.   

OPEN FORUM
60 The following matters were raised during the open forum:

Page 3

Agenda Item 8



a) Metrolink closure 
Cllr Brett sought clarification on when the full Metrolink service to the Town Centre 
would resume following disruption due to an unsafe building on Drake Street and 
requested regular updates be provided to all stakeholders as to the progress of the 
works. 

The Director of Neighbourhoods undertook to ensure all stakeholders were kept 
informed as to developments with the situation and information would be circulated 
as soon as possible.

b) Former Turner Brothers site  
Mr M. Cotes addressed the Township Committee seeking updated information in 
relation to a recently completed contamination survey and related matters on the site.  

The Director of Neighbourhoods provided a comprehensive response to questions 
and advised that these would also be sent in writing directly to Mr Cotes.

c) Taxi matters in Rochdale Town Centre
Mr M. Hussain addressed the Township Committee requesting if additional taxi ranks 
would be included as part of plans for planned developments in Rochdale Town 
Centre; requesting that representations be made by the Township Committee for a 
new taxi rank on Fleece Street, Rochdale; expressing concerns over taxi’s dropping 
off in illegal points around the Town Hall and of vehicles registered in Rossendale are 
still taking business in Rochdale Town Centre.

The Chair advised that Mr Hussain would receive a written response to each 
question from the relevant Council Officers.

d) Allotments 
Mr D. Clayton addressed the Township Committee seeking an update on the number 
of allotments created within the Township in the previous twelve months.  

The Chair advised that Mr Clayton would receive a written response to each question 
from the relevant Council Officers.

e) Rochdale Market
Mr C. Harker addressed the Township Committee seeking information on the 
tendering process to run the relocated market, specifically why the group of stall 
holders known as the New Rochdale Pioneers had not been successful in their bid.  

The Chair advised that Mr Harker would receive a written response from relevant 
Council Officers.   

f) Travellers 
Ms H. Phipps addressed the Township Committee raising concerns over travellers 
visiting the Borough, highlighting issues of anti-social behaviour at Greenbank 
Common and Cronkeyshaw Common.  Ms Phipps requested the Township 
Committee apply for an injunction banning Traveller communities from entering the 
sites.   Furthermore Ms Phipps advised that the designated traveller site at Croft 
Shifa was not being utilised as it wasn’t turfed.    

Ms Phipps was advised that the Council’s Legal Services were looking at options for 
exclusion but that gathering the necessary information would take time.  The Chair 
advised that a comprehensive response in writing would be sent to Ms Phipps.

Page 4



MINUTES
61 Further to minute 51 (a) of the meeting held on 11th January 2017, Members 
requested the addition of comments relating to the amount of provision available for 
female only sessions, particularly women of faith sessions, for which the current 
allocation was limited.

In relation to minute 55, relating to Rochdale in Bloom, Members were advised that a 
report had been considered at the Rochdale Township Action and Resources Sub-
Committee meeting held on 7th March 2017 and that a further report regarding 
proposals for the event in 2017/18 would be brought to a future meeting.   

Resolved – That with the amendment to minute 51 (a) noted above, the minutes 
of the meeting held on 11th January be approved as a correct record and 
signed by the Chair. 

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP ACTION AND RESOURCES DELEGATED SUB-
COMMITTEE
62 Resolved – That the minutes of the Rochdale Township Action & 
Resources Sub-Committee meeting held on 7th March 2017, be noted.

DISPOSAL OF COUNCIL LAND AT THE STRAND, KIRKHOLT, 
ROCHDALE
63 The Township Committee considered a report from the Director of 
Neighbourhoods seeking approval for the disposal of Council owned land at The 
Strand to enable the development of a new Health facility.  

Alternatives considered and discounted: Members could determine to hold on to the 
site or dispose of for an alternative use.  However these were discounted on the 
grounds that the development of a new health centre at the Strand is in accordance 
with the HMR Clinical Commissioning Group estate and primary care strategy to 
provide high quality, flexible space to maximise primary care and community services 
under one roof for Kirkholt residents, reducing Accident and Emergency attendance 
and bringing services closer to patients.  This will accompany The Strand 
Regeneration Project which is the first phase of a wider redevelopment of Kirkholt 
which will include additional housing and proposed new community facilities.

Resolved – That the land identified in appendix 1 of the submitted report on 
The Strand, Kirkholt, be approved for disposal to NHS Property Services for the 
development of a new Health Centre.

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP SECTION 106
64 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of Economy 
detailing the amount of section 106 public open space funds accrued within the 
Township and seeking approval of allocation of funds for open space improvements 
in Healy, Central Rochdale and Milkstone & Deeplish Wards.  

Alternatives considered: Members were able to confirm or decline the proposed 
schemes or suggest alternative schemes provided they met the requirements of 
national and local policy obligations and the parameters of the legally binding 
unilateral undertakings arising from section 106 agreements.

Page 5



In considering the report Members of the Township Committee expressed concern 
over a lack of consultation with Ward Members in the consideration of allocating 
section 106 monies.  

Resolved – That (1) £99,000 of section 106 contributions received from a 
residential development on Dean Street be used for improvements to the 
Rochdale Quaker Burial Ground and Ball Street Gardens;
(2) the request for section 106 funds for the proposed repair of footpaths 
around Syke Common Pond be approved;
(3) the request for funds for the proposed improvements at St Chad’s Gardens 
and Deeplish Improvements be declined and Environmental Management be 
informed that the Township Committee requests that the work should be 
undertaken by Environmental Management repair funds; 
(4) the Chief Planning Officer be requested to distribute a list of outstanding 
section 106 monies and address the matter of Member consultation for the 
allocation of section 106 funds.    

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP HIGHWAYS WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18
65 The Township Committee considered the report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods which requested the Committee to note and approve the highways 
work programmes which were proposed to take place during the 2017-2018 financial 
year for Rochdale Township.

The programmes were appended to the submitted report and included the following:-
 Year 2 of the 2016 - 2018 Approved Highways Maintenance Programme; 
 2017-18 Patching Programme;
 2017-18 Drainage Repair Programme; 
 2017-18 Bridges and Structures Maintenance Programme;

The recommendations were put forward as Members had already approved year 2 of 
the 2016/18 two year highways maintenance programme. 

The remaining programmes had been identified by using asset management good 
practice which was deemed by the Department of Transport (DfT) to be the most 
efficient way of managing highways assets. 

No alternatives programmes had been considered as part of the process. The 
programmes had been put together using the principles of asset management with 
the aim of improving the Townships assets in the most efficient way possible.  

Resolved – That (1) Year 2 of the 2016 -2018 Approved Highways Maintenance 
Programme be noted;
(2) the 2017-18 Patching Programme be brought back to a future meeting of the 
Township Committee following a review of the schemes by Members;
(3) the 2017-18 Drainage Repair Programme be approved as detailed in the 
submitted report;
(4) the 2017-18 Bridges and Structures Maintenance Programme be approved 
as detailed in the submitted report.

TOWNSHIPS PLAN 2017-19
66 The Township Committee considered the report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods which sought approval of the Township Plan for 2017-19.

Page 6



The Township Plan identified priorities determined by each Township’s Councillors 
as a focus for action over the next two years.  The plan gathered aspirations and 
ideas together as a focus for decision makers, Council services, partner agencies 
and the voluntary and community sector active in the Rochdale Borough.

Alternatives considered: The Township Plan 2017-19 included strategies and 
objectives identified to meet the priorities identified by each Township.  It is 
developed to guide, direct and detail the use of devolved budgets, including 
Township Revenue Funds, for the financial years 2017/18 and 2018/19.  Members 
were requested to identify any alternative issues for inclusion within the Plan.

Members of the Township Committee expressed concern on the process of 
Highways schemes approved by Members of the Township Committee and the 
Actions & Resources Sub-Committee.  Members requested the Director of 
Neighbourhoods report on the process for approving and scheduling of such 
schemes including the communication of progression to Members. 

Resolved – That (1) the detail included in the Townships Plan 2017-19 as 
appended to the submitted report be noted;
(2) the consultation undertaken in developing the Township Plan, be noted;
(3) the plan be approved to enable a focus on local priorities in line with the 
Council’s three key priorities – Prosperity, People and Place;
(4) the Director of Neighbourhoods report on the process for approving and 
scheduling of such schemes including the communication of progression to 
Members.

Page 7



Report to Rochdale Township Committee

Date of Meeting 29th June 2017

Portfolio Cabinet Member Corporate and 
Resources

Report Author Caroline Denyer
Public/Private Document For Publication

Rochdale Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 
2017/18

Executive Summary

1. To request the Township Committee confirm its delegated decision making 
arrangements and make appointments to the Township Sub-Committees, 
including the Chairs, Vice Chairs and substitute members; the appointment of 
“lead” opposition spokespersons; and the appointment to various Priority 
Groups and Other Township Bodies.

Recommendation

2.1 

2.2

2.3 

2.4   

2.5 

2.6  

That the current Sub-Committee structure of the Rochdale Township 
Committee comprising of the Rochdale Township Action and Resources 
Delegated Sub-Committee and the terms of reference as at appendix 1 of the 
report be approved.  

That appointments to the Membership of the Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Delegated Sub-Committee be agreed in accordance with the 
established formula -

•   Labour - 7 seats
• Conservatives - 2 seats

That the Chair and Vice Chair of the Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Committee Delegated Sub-Committee be appointed.

That the ‘lead’ opposition spokespersons to the Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Delegated Sub-Committee be appointed;

That the Substitute Members to the Rochdale Township Action & Resources 
Delegated Sub- Committee be appointed.  

That the relevant Ward Councillors be appointed to the following Area Forums:-

a. Balderstone and Kirkholt Community Meeting
b. Bamford and Oakenrod Area Forum
c. Brimrod, Marland and Sudden Area Forum
d. Castleton Area Forum
e. Central Rochdale Area Forum
f. Healey Area Forum

Page 8

Agenda Item 9



2.7       

g. Kingsway Area Forum
h. Milkstone and Deeplish Area Forum
i. Norden Area Forum
j. Spotland and Falinge Area Forum

That Members be appointed to the following Township Bodies:-
a.      Older Person’s Champion 
b.     Rochdale Township Clean and Green Priority Group
c.      Rochdale Township Communities and Engagement Priority Group
d.      Rochdale Township Members Regeneration Group

Reason for Recommendation

3. The Council has established and appoints Township Committees that may 
exercise both executive and non-executive powers as set out in the 
Responsibility for Council Functions in Part 3 of the Constitution. 

The Sub-Committee exercises either delegated powers or acts on any matter 
detailed in the Committee’s Terms of Reference on which it is essential to take 
a decision. 

Appointments are made, as far as is possible, in accordance with the 
Township Committee’s political balance,

The proper appointment of Sub-Committees is required to permit the
undertaking of delegated functions in accordance with statutory and
procedural requirements, and appointments to Working Groups and Other
Bodies are required to enable the Township Committee to undertake and to
respond to the full range of issues relevant to the Township.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

Rochdale Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub- Committee currently 
exercises formal powers as detailed at Appendix 1, as the Committee for 
dealing with ’urgent’ issues on behalf of the Township Committee and for 
making grant approvals and decisions on devolved budgets and Township 
Funds.  

a. The Committee has previously determined that the Township Sub-
Committees comprise nine Members and that they be appointed on a 
politically balanced basis within Rochdale Township whilst seeking as far 
as possible to ensure representation for each of the Township’s nine 
Wards. 

b. The political balance in Rochdale Township in 2017/18 for nine Member 
Sub-Committees is as follows: -

 Labour Group 21/27 x 9 = 7 seats
 Conservative Group 6/27 x 9 = 2 seats 

c. The number of substitute Members appointed to the Sub-Committee 

Page 9



4.3

should not exceed the number of ordinary seats held by that Group on 
that Committee or Sub-Committee, or three Substitute Members in total.

Area Forums – The Township Committee appoints Members to the area 
forums. 

Alternatives Considered

The Committee could choose not to appoint to sub-committees and undertake 
all delegated functions themselves, but that this may have a detrimental 
impact on the ability to progress Township priorities or deal with urgent items 
of business.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. There are no direct financial implications to this report.

Risk and Policy Implications

6. The Committee is being asked to confirm its delegation arrangements to 
ensure that decisions are made in accordance with relevant and statutory 
procedural requirements.  Not to appoint to the Sub-Committee and the 
working groups might limit member involvement in key initiatives for the 
Township.

Consultation

7. Not required.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. There are no background papers to this report.

For Further Information Contact: Caroline Denyer, Tel: 01706 924717, 
Caroline.Denyer2@Rochdale.Gov.UK   

Page 10



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP ACTION AND RESOURCES 
DELEGATED SUB-COMMITTEE

TERMS OF REFERENCE  

1. To receive and consider the minutes arising from meetings of the Ward/Area 
Forums and other Township Priority Groups and related bodies, referring matters 
of concern to the Township Committee.

2. To exercise the following delegated powers as detailed in Part 3 of the Council’s 
Constitution – Responsibility for Functions

A. Determination of objections/representations in respect of the Appointment 
of Hackney Carriage Stands

B. Urgent designation of a Conservation Area unless deemed to be strategic 
in nature by the relevant Director and where such items are not 
Development Plan Documents.

C. To deal with urgent matters within the remit of the Rochdale Township 
Committee

3. To exercise under delegated powers the following powers of the Rochdale 
Township Committee (as contained within Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution – 
Responsibility for Functions )
A. Confirmation of Traffic Regulation Orders which are the subject of 

objection by persons directly affected by the proposal (i.e. in occupation of 
premises in the immediate vicinity of the proposal) other than in 
circumstances where a Township Committee chooses not to confirm an 
Order deemed strategic in nature by the Director of Neighbourhoods in 
which case the matter shall be referred to the Cabinet

B. Closures or diversions of highways, including footpaths and bridleways, 
deemed to be contentious by the Director of Neighbourhoods

C. Experimental Traffic Regulation Orders (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, 
S.9)

D. Traffic regulation for special areas, for example, Country Park ( Road 
Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.22)

E. Pedestrian crossings, for example, pelican and zebra crossings (Road 
Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.23)

F. Street playgrounds (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.29)
G. Byelaws for street playgrounds (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.31)
H. Installation of road humps which are the subject of significant objections 

by people directly affected (as determined by the Director of 
Neighbourhoods)

I. Making Up of Private Streets – Part IX of Highways Act 1980
(i) The private street works code

Page 11



(ii) General
(iii) The advance payment code

J. Power to determine applications to make Orders under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 deemed

K. contentious by the Director of Neighbourhoods
L. To keep definitive map and statement under review 
M. Power to make Footpath Creation Orders under the Highways Act 1980 

S.26
N. Reclassification of roads used as public paths under the Wildlife and 

Countryside Act 1981
O. Power to designate public footpaths as cycle tracks under the Cycle 

Tracks Act 1984
P. Consideration of any other matter that may be referred to the Township 

relating to the regulation of highways, footpaths, bridleways etc. 

4. To have full responsibility for all aspects of devolution (including any related 
delegated budgets and Township Funds) and the implementation and 
development of the Township Plan.

5. To receive reports from ‘devolved’ and ‘influenced’ Services detailing their 
response to the Township priorities in the Township Plan and the development of 
their respective Service Plans to reflect those priorities.

6. To monitor budgets delegated to the Township level (including Township Funds), 
to ensure that all requirements and restrictions placed on any devolved funding 
are met or are capable of being met before any decisions are made.

7. To consider and comment on quarterly monitoring reports on devolved funding 
with a subsequent report to Rochdale Township Committee.

8. To consider and determine all applications/ proposals to the Township Funds, 
ensuring that all requirements and restrictions placed on any devolved funding 
are met, or capable of being met, before any decisions are made.

Page 12



Report to Rochdale Township Committee

Date of Meeting 29 June 2017
Portfolio Neighbourhoods & 

Community
Report Author Sharron Worrall
Public/Private Document Public Document

Rochdale Township Funds Review

1. Executive Summary

1.1 This report reviews the revenue and capital expenditure during 2016/17 and 
provides options for the allocation of funds in 2017/18.

1.2 Members are asked to approve Rochdale Township Funds terms and 
conditions, and agree delegation arrangements concerning funding decisions.

2. Recommendation

2.1 Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Rochdale 
Township revenue and capital funds at financial year end 2016/17 (Appendix 1 
and 2).

2.2 Members note the findings of the review of Township Funds 2016/17 
(Appendix 3) and evaluations received to date for some of the projects funded 
(Appendix 4).

2.3 Members approve the allocation of Rochdale Township Funds to funding 
streams in 2017/18 as detailed in Appendix 5.

2.4 Members approve the terms and conditions for Rochdale Township revenue 
and capital funds for 2017/18 (Appendix 6).

2.5 Members agree to the delegation arrangements for Rochdale Township Funds 
2017/18 as detailed at 4.6 of this report.

2.6 Members agree any uncommitted/unspent funds be reallocated to a central 
revenue or capital funding stream as appropriate before year end (Members 
Funds at the end of January 2018 and other funding streams at the end of 
February 2018) to enable Members to spend/commit all Rochdale Township 
Funds during 2017/18 financial year.

Page 13

Agenda Item 10



3. Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Management of the Rochdale Township Fund is delegated to the Rochdale 
Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee.

3.2 Rochdale Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the 
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities.

3.3 To enable committee to monitor and review the use of the Rochdale Township 
Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds.

4. Key Points for Consideration

4.1 Members note expenditure, commitments and balances for Rochdale 
Township revenue and capital funds 2016/17 (Appendix 1 and 2).  The final 
outturn for financial year 2016/17 as agreed with Accountancy will be reported 
to the next scheduled funding committee.

4.2 A review of Rochdale Township revenue and capital funds has been 
undertaken (Appendix 3).  Findings have influenced funding streams 
suggestions, the terms and conditions of the funds and the administration 
procedures for grant applications for 2017/18.

4.3 Evaluation of projects provides useful information to the Township relating to 
identifying the effectiveness of the application process and management of 
grants; whether projects deliver value for money; applicants achieve their 
objectives and evidence their successes, and ensure that the completed 
projects funded complied with the terms and conditions of the Rochdale 
Township Fund.  Grants awarded and projects funded have made a difference 
to the local community with improvements to local facilities, increased social 
interaction and delivery of solutions to address local needs.  All successful 
applicants are informed that it is a condition of the grant that they complete a 
project evaluation form.  Members are asked to note the summaries of 
evaluation information received on projects which have been funded as 
detailed in Appendix 4.

4.4 Township Officers have analysed the findings from the review of Township 
Funds 2016/17 and recommend that Members approve the allocation of 
Township Funds to funding streams in 2017/18 as detailed in Appendix 5.

4.5 Terms and conditions for Rochdale Township revenue and capital funds have 
been updated.  Members are asked to approve the terms and conditions for 
2017/18 (Appendix 6).

4.6 Members are asked to agree the delegation arrangements for Rochdale 
Township Funds 2017/18 as follows:

a) Townships and Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair, 
Vice Chair and Opposition Spokespersons of Rochdale Township Action 
& Resources Delegated Sub Committee, may make decisions on the 
allocation of funds to all projects for £5,000 and under.  Any disputes 

Page 14



concerning allocation of funds will be referred to the next Rochdale 
Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee for decision.

b) Rochdale Township Office will refer projects over £5,000 to the next 
Rochdale Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee for 
decision.

c) Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Rochdale 
Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee to ensure all 
Members are aware of projects that have been approved.

4.7 Alternatives Considered

In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the 
allocation of funds to funding streams and adopt the terms and conditions.

5. Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 Rochdale Township revenue and capital budget summaries that detail 
expenditure, commitments and balances for financial year 2016/17 in 
Appendix 1 and 2.  Recommendations for allocation of Rochdale Township 
Funds to funding streams for financial year 2017/18 in Appendix 5.

5.2 Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use 
of the Rochdale Township Funds to ensure best use of available resources.

5.3 Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring 
reports will be presented to future committees.

6. Risk and Policy Implications

6.1 No specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report.

6.2 The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework.  The plan 
for 2017-19 will be regularly updated to reflect how funds are allocated across 
the Townships in line with the identified priorities.

6.3 The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to 
meet their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet those 
priorities.

7. Consultation

7.1 None

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None N/A

For Further Information Contact: Sharron Worrall
sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 924802

Page 15



APPENDIX 1 
 

 

 
 

 

  
 

Forecast Outturn 304,276 

Potential over/underspend - 

 

 
 

 
Funds 

 
Budget 

b/f 2015/16 

£ 

Base 

Budget 

2016/17 

£ 

Income/ 

Adjustments 

2016/17 

£ 

Revised 

Budget 

2016/17 

£ 

 
 

Committed 

£ 

 
 

Actuals 

£ 

Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds 

£ 

 
Virement 

to Services 

£ 

 
 

Total 

£ 

Budget 

remaining 

2016/17 

£ 

Members Fund - 54,000 - 54,000 24,12
3 

20,598 2,933 6,345 54,000 0 

Ward Fund - 72,000 - 72,000 43,36
1 

7,407 5,561 15,672 72,000 - 

Projects Fund 1,576 19,800 - 21,376 12,88
2 

7,090 (27,161) 19,381 12,192 9,184 

Clean & Green Priority Fund - 20,000 - 20,000 10,47
3 

3,503 - 6,024 20,000 - 

Communities & Engagement Priority Fund - 20,000 - 20,000 6,60
2 

11,398 - 2,000 20,000 - 

Township Allocated Funds (pre 2016/17) 116,900 - - 116,900 22,85
7 

48,297 18,667 27,078 116,900 0 

Total 118,476 185,800 - 304,276 120,29
8 

98,293 (0) 76,500 295,091 9,185 

 

% Actual 

Spend 

% Actual + 

Committed 

57.45% 96.98% 

 

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE £ 

Budget b/f 2015/16 118,476 

Base Budget 2016/17 185,800 

Income/Adjustments 2016/17 - 

Total budget for 2016/17 304,276 

Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals 174,793 

Commitments 120,298 

Total Actual + Commitments 295,091 

Budget Remaining 2016/17 9,185 

 

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2016/17 

P
age 16



APPENDIX 2 
 

 

 
 

 

  
 

Forecast Outturn 220,240 

Potential over/underspend - 

 

 
 

 
Funds 

 
Budget 

b/f 2015/16 

£ 

Base 

Budget 

2016/17 

£ 

Income/ 

Adjustments 

2016/17 

£ 

Revised 

Budget 

2016/17 

£ 

 

Committed 

£ 

 

Actuals 

£ 

Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds 

£ 

 
Virement 

to Services 

£ 

 

Total 

£ 

Budget 

remaining 

2016/17 

£ 

Armed Forces Fund 8,340 - - 8,340 - - - - - 8,340 

Capital Fund 29,900 182,000 - 211,900 8,700 500 - 181,680 190,880 21,020 

Total 38,240 182,000 - 220,240 8,700 500 - 181,680 190,880 29,360 

 

% Actual 

Spend 

% Actual + 

Committed 

82.72% 86.67% 

 

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL £ 

Budget b/f 2015/16 38,240 

Base Budget 2016/17 182,000 

Income/Adjustments 2016/17 - 

Total budget for 2016/17 220,240 

Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals 182,180 

Commitments 8,700 

Total Actual + Commitments 190,880 

Budget Remaining 2016/17 29,360 

 

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2016/17 

P
age 17



1 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 3 

 

 

 

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP YEAR END REVENUE & CAPITAL FUNDS REVIEW 2016/17 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Projects Fund £19,800 
Base Budget 

 
£1,576 

b/f 2015/16 

Projects Fund provides a budget to resource larger projects to address local issues/demands to benefit the local 
community and environment across Rochdale Township. 
 
Funds were used to support 14 projects during 2016/17 consisting of 6 community projects and 8 
highways/environmental projects.  The variety of projects funded included a soft play area for Kirky Kitchen located in 
St Thomas’ Church, Kirkholt to enhance the facilities for users; provision of cones to be used in conjunction with a 
traffic order that prohibits parking before, during and after events in the Spotland Stadium area; Read and Feed 
initiative to be organised at Balderstone and Belfield Libraries during the summer 2017 that aims to provide a meal to 
children during the holidays who may not eat when not at school and increase the number of 5-11 year olds accessing 
local library services; speed surveys on Rooley Moor Road, Sparthbottoms Road and Edenfield Road; re-painting the 
Rochdale Olympic sculpture; Post Natal Dental Packs to be distributed to mothers from the Rochdale Borough who 
give birth at Royal Oldham Hospital; a programme of healthy activity, competition and support for young people in 
Pennines involving rugby league coaching and a series of inter-school matches; investigation into rat running along 
Longfield Road between Sandy Lane and Edenfield Road; provision of on street parking bays outside Syke Methodist 
Chapel, Rochdale; picket fencing around the Christmas tree located near Rochdale Town Hall; Touchstones 
Rochdale propose to deliver an event that celebrates the heritage, culture and different communities in Rochdale with 
a day of activities, performances and workshops in Touchstones during the half term holiday October 2017 that will 
present, explore and celebrate the rich diversity of Rochdale. 
 
At year end unallocated balances from other revenue funding streams were transferred into this budget to provide 
Members with the opportunity to identify and fund projects that have not been progressed due to lack of funds in those 
individual funding streams.  An unallocated amount of £9,185 will be carried forward to the Projects Fund 2017/18 for 
allocation. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Projects Fund in 2017/18 retains a base budget of £19,800 (subject to final outturn agreed with Accountancy). 

 

P
age 18



2 

 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Ward Fund £72,000 
Base Budget 

Each Rochdale Township Ward received £8,000 to enable the Area Forums to maintain their success and 
effectiveness in addressing local issues raised through the Forums. 
 
This fund was used to support 41 projects during 2016/17 consisting of 15 community projects and 26 
highways/environmental projects.  The variety of projects funded included a contribution to improvements at Chesham 
Park Play Area; picnic benches to provide seating for the local community and a location for Syke Community Base 
service users and visitors to enjoy their lunch/break in the summer months; security gates for Springfield Park 
miniature railway; replacement CCTV camera on the Old Post Office, Edenfield Road, Norden and recording 
equipment to deter anti-social behavior/criminal activity within Norden Village; installation of two bollards on Dowling 
Street, Rochdale to prevent vehicles parking on the footpath outside the fire exit of The Curtain Theatre; exercise 
sessions at Spotland Community Centre with a focus on armchair exercises to provide the elderly or people with 
mobility issues the opportunity to improve their strength, balance and co-ordination; boxing and fitness equipment for 
Hamer Amateur Boxing Club & Community Fitness Centre to deliver female only sessions. 
 
An unallocated amount of £5,561 was transferred to the Projects Fund at the end of February 2017 for allocation to 
projects identified before year end. 

Township Officers recommend the Ward Fund in 2017/18 is allocated a reduced base budget of £64,800 (£7,200 per Ward) to facilitate establishing a 
Rochdale Town Centre Fund with a base budget of £7,200 to resource initiatives/projects specific to Rochdale Town Centre. 

Members Fund £54,000 
Base Budget 

Each Rochdale Township Councillor received £2,000 to allocate to projects within their Ward for the benefit of the 
local community and environment. 
 
Funds were used to support 76 projects during 2016/17 consisting of 48 community projects and 28 
highways/environmental projects.  The variety of projects funded included the adjustment of a guardrail on Fieldhouse 
Road to allow access for mobility scooters; a mural that reflects the nature and heritage aspect of the canal and 
Castleton Village on a retaining wall blighted by graffiti; fencing along Ashworth Road, Rochdale to deter fly tipping; 
installation of two bollards on Shawclough Road to prevent vehicles parking across the entrance to the cycle way; fruit 
trees to create a community orchard to increase the biodiversity and improve the habitat of Moss Row; curtains for St 
Gabriel’s Amateur Dramatic Society; Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum launch event including a dedication to the 
Millworkers of Rochdale on the Cotton Famine Road; Greave Summer Playscheme arts and crafts sessions plus an 
educational visit to the Manchester Museum of Science and Industry; a commercial range gas cooker to enable 
Rochdale Women’s Welfare Association to cater for a luncheon club for service users and deliver healthy cooking 
classes; ‘Petrus Peddles’ will provide the opportunity for Petrus Community service users to improve their cycling and 
bike maintenance skills. 
 
An unallocated amount of £2,933 was transferred to the Projects Fund at the end of January 2017 for allocation to 
projects identified before year end. 

Township Officers recommend the Members Fund in 2017/18 retains a base budget of £54,000 for each Rochdale Township Councillor to be allocated 
£2,000. 

P
age 19



3 

 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Clean & Green 
Priority Fund 

£20,000 
Base Budget 

The Clean & Green Priority Fund was established to attain and maintain high environmental standards for Rochdale 
Township’s public spaces and assets.  The Clean & Green Priority Group identified/developed environmental projects 
and influenced funding decisions and monitored progress. 
 
Funds were used to support 10 environmental projects during 2016/17.  The variety of projects funded included 
Healthy Food For All initiative that involved transforming an unused plot of derelict land at the back of terraced 
housing on Kellett Street with the aim of creating an orchard and fruit growing area, bee hives and a community 
greenhouse plus small taster plots for individuals; a vertical garden within St Mary’s CE Primary School’s yard for 
pupils to grow fruit and vegetables, encourage them to make healthier lifestyle choices, learn about 
sustainability/recycling and provide an attractive outdoor learning environment; installation of a notice board in Norden 
Jubilee Park to promote the aims and objectives of the Friends group and raise awareness within the local community 
of the activities/events in the park; workshops in community centres across Rochdale Township to raise awareness of 
recycling and complement Rochdale Council’s recycling and waste collection campaigns; litter pick packs made 
available to environmental community groups based in Rochdale Township to empower the community to improve 
their local environment and transform public spaces through community clean ups; resource horticultural projects to 
be delivered by Rochdale in Bloom throughout Rochdale Township for their entry to the North West in Bloom 
Competition 2017; provision of tiered planters on The Walk, Rochdale to transform this urban space with attractive 
floral displays; trees and herbaceous plants for Denehurst Park to improve the park’s landscape and create a new 
welcoming entrance into the park. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Clean & Green Priority Fund retains a base budget of £20,000 in 2017/18. 

Communities & 
Engagement 
Priority Fund 

£20,000 
Base Budget 

The Communities & Engagement Priority Fund was established to encourage residents and community groups to get 
involved in shaping and delivering services and initiatives to meet local needs.  The Communities & Engagement 
Priority Group identified/developed community projects and influenced funding decisions and monitored progress. 
 
Funds were used to support 22 community related projects during 2016/17.  The variety of projects funded included 
an early intervention street and community based outreach service in the Middleton Township to address the needs of 
young people who are at risk of substance misuse; Rochdale Youth Service Summer Activity Programme encouraged 
young people to participate in positive activities that promote health, life skills and community cohesion; contribution to 
the refurbishment of 7th A Scout Group scout hut involving the replacement of the kitchen to provide a safe and 
hygienic area for the children and young people to participate in learn to cook sessions; open days and classes to 
raise awareness and educate the local community about Kashmiri culture, heritage and language; Qawwali music 
event; enhance the changing facilities at Rochdale Sports Club to attract/retain female players; Broadfield Community 
Primary School’s ‘Think Family’ project that aims to encourage the families of pupils and wider community to engage 
and get involved in activities for children to achieve their potential.  The school proposes to deliver eight family days 
during the Easter and Summer school holidays. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Communities & Engagement Priority Fund retains a base budget of £20,000 in 2017/18. 

P
age 20



4 

 

 

CAPITAL FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Capital Fund £182,000 
Base Budget 

 
£29,900 

b/f 2015/16 
 

The Capital Fund has been used to deliver projects/schemes that benefit the Township’s community and environment, 
and realise the Township priorities in 2016/17.  Projects were submitted from Councillors, Council Officers and the 
community via Area Forums.  At year end all other capital funding streams were transferred into this budget to provide 
Members with the opportunity to identify and fund projects that have not been progressed due to lack of funds in these 
individual funding streams. 
 
Funds were used to support 21 projects during 2016/17 consisting of 2 community project and 19 
highways/environmental projects.  The variety of projects funded included introduction of traffic calming measures and 
20mph zone on Cutgate Road; installation of two lighting columns on Fox Street (Off Entwistle Road) to address 
concerns raised about the lack of lighting in the area; removal of parking bays on A58 Halifax Road at the approach to 
the Albert Royds Street roundabout and replace with double yellow lines to improve the flow of traffic; contribution 
towards improvements to Chesham Park Play Area involving the preparation of site, re-surfacing the play area, 
installation of new play equipment and enhance the fencing surrounding the play area; new tractor for Rochdale 
Sports Club to maintain safe, high quality pitches for cricket and lacrosse; introduction of waiting restrictions on Elbut 
Lane, Moss Avenue, Marne Crescent, Bagslate Moor Road and Norden Road; installation of a 15m Armco barrier at 
the junction of Sandy Lane and Viking Street, Rochdale to prevent vehicles from mounting the footpath and causing 
damage to properties; creation of a community allotment on part of St Mary’s Primary School’s field next to 
Balderstone Park to encourage local children and residents to participate in growing and gardening projects. 
 
Unallocated funds of £21,020 and committed funds of £8,700 will be carried forward to 2017/18. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Capital Fund retains a base budget of £182,000 in 2017/18 (subject to final outturn agreed with Accountancy). 

Armed Forces 
Fund 

£8,340 
b/f 2015/16 

Rochdale Township received a budget of £20,000 for a four year period in 2014/15 for updating and enhancing 
existing memorials and introducing new memorials to commemorate the centenary of the First World War (1914-
1918). 
 
No projects were supported in 2016/17.  Unallocated funds of £8,340 will be carried forward to 2017/18. 
 

 

P
age 21



APPENDIX 4 

“…we created cool art boards for each 
pupil to keep and take home when at the 
school workshop” 
Andrew Casserley aka Cass 
Artist 

Spearfish Arts 

Recipient: Spearfish Arts 

Project: Canal mural in Castleton 

Fund: Members Fund 

Awarded: £2,900 

A mural that reflects the nature and heritage aspect of the canal and Castleton Village was 
created on a retaining wall blighted by graffiti near the canal as it is highly visible to people 
leaving and visiting Castleton via train or walking along the towpath.  Removal of the graffiti 
was not possible due to the potential of the chemicals contaminating the canal water and 
damaging a national and European protected water plant Luronioum Natans.  Barratt 
Homes, who built the retaining wall a few years ago, agreed to match fund the art project. 

Professional artists from Spearfish Arts facilitated a workshop with year 6 pupils from St 
Edward’s Primary School to create the mural design that included images of the old Whipp 
and Bourne Engineering, the canal and farmland.  The children were inspired to create 
unique drawings for the mural design.  The art project aimed to lift the profile of the village 
and combat anti-social behaviour with the involvement of local children encouraging their 
ownership and future protection of the mural.  The artists amalgamated all the pupils’ ideas 
into the final design, sketched the multiple drawings on the wall before painting it to create 
the striking mural.  The completed mural was painted with an anti-graffiti coating to prevent 
it being defaced with writing or graffiti. 

Page 22



Page 23



“The local urban environment has been 
greatly improved by bringing a derelict 
piece of land into use regularly” 
Nasser Afzal 
Project Manager 

Environmental Management 

Recipient: Environmental Management, Rochdale Borough Council 

Project: Healthy Food For All 

Fund: Clean & Green Priority Fund 

Awarded: £2,500 

Healthy Food For All is a project that aims to transform an unused plot of derelict land at the 
back of terraced housing on Kellett Street with an orchard and fruit growing area, bee hives 
and a community greenhouse plus small taster plots for individuals.  The land is being 
transformed with the support of members from the Kellett Street Community Growing 
Scheme and volunteers from the local community.  The project will provide an opportunity for 
local people to develop new skills in bee-keeping, hard landscaping, wildlife conservation 
and cultivation of food.  The community growing scheme site will provide a location for local 
people to socialise and meet others.  The vision is for it to become a green haven and local 
schools and community groups will be encouraged to use the space for picnics, storytelling, 
events and activities. 

Page 24



The first phase of the project has been achieved from the funds awarded.  The knotweed and 
balsam on the site has been treated and dangerous sheds and asbestos cleared, and the first 
section of a path network installed that will allow access to individual taster plots and all other 
areas on site.  Eleven allotment plots have been created and allocated with the plot holders  
now on site cultivating their plots.  A community fruit shrub area with blackberries, grapes, 
blueberries and strawberries will be developed for local people to enjoy and maintain.  The 
long term aim of the community growing scheme is to encourage schools, community groups 
and individuals to plant their own fruit shrubs and vegetables to achieve a more healthy and 
active community. 

This project serves a community that suffers multiple deprivation, including health 
deprivation.  It is in the 3% most deprived part of the country.  This project will encourage 
local people to get active, promote healthy eating and provide the wellbeing benefits from 
access to nature. 

Page 25



“The workers were able to reach out to 
local community members who were able 
to identify hotspots where young people 
congregated and also work with services 
that deliver interventions in the area” 
Shakila Hamid 

Operational Manager, Early Break 

Recipient: Early Break 

Project: Assertive Outreach Project 

Fund: Communities & Engagement Priority Fund 

Awarded: £500 

Early Break delivers substance related treatment interventions to young people under the age 
of 21.  The service addresses the associated complexities in offending and health behaviours 
amongst young people.  Early Break has been an innovative provider of interventions since 
1994 through a clear person-centred ethos in which all stakeholders are valued and shown 
respect, proactive outreach and special projects in collaboration with partner agencies, 
specialist substance misuse screening and assessments with young people and families, 
alternative therapy provision, service user involvement and the award winning Holding 
Families Project where they address the impact of parental substance misuse on family life.  
The service has a strong social media presence, with national and international reach, offering 
harm reduction on a daily basis. 

The Assertive Outreach Project has delivered an Early Intervention street and community 
based outreach service in Rochdale Township, addressing needs of young people who are 
at risk of substance misuse, specifically young people that are at risk of using Novel 
Psychoactive Substances as these have created many health issues for young people and 
increased the number of people being admitted to A&E.  The main objectives of the project 
were to: 

 Provide the skills, information and advice around health, education, family and offending,
etc resulting in young people being empowered to make informed choices around their
health and lifestyle.

 Young people who ‘fall through the net’ are identified and offered support in addressing
substance use and associated needs.

 Assertive work in areas that are seeing an increase use of Novel Psychoactive Substances
(illegal/legal highs) or drug/alcohol use

 Improve the health and wellbeing of young people and reduce the risks that young people
take in relation to substance use and offending.

Outreach sessions were delivered from 6pm–8pm across Rochdale that included various 
parks, outside shops, community venues in the area, train station and tram stops, etc.  The 
workers were able to reach out to local community members who were able to identify 
hotspots where young people congregated and also work with services that deliver 
interventions in the area such as at the Town Centre/Bus Station to reach out to young people 
they may have identified as risk taking or using substances. 

Page 26



 

The work that was delivered in Rochdale included: 

 Provided young people in the area with food which was donated to Early Break

 Provided clothes from the clothing bank to at risk and vulnerable young people and young
adults

 Delivered brief interventions around risk taking behaviour and risk to self and others when
using substances

 Signed young people up to the condom distribution scheme and provided sexual health
advice and condoms.

 Managed behaviour of some very small groups of young people

 Provided education to young people and local residents about the service and how to access
the service if they required a service or needed the service to intervene with young people
they were concerned about

 Harm Reduction advice provided to young people who were using substances

 Referrals into Early Break for young people identified and wanting to address their substance
related issues including young people requiring support for family issues around substance
misuse

 Signposted young people to online tools they could use to help with issues they presented
such as the www.dontbeazombie.co.uk

 Spoke to young people about Child Sexual Exploitation to increase awareness and
knowledge of grooming

 Provide brief interventions around smoking cessation and gave details for how to refer in for
these services

 Supported a young person who was found begging in the area of Rochdale

 Reported any potential drug dealing to crime stoppers

 Completed questionnaires with young people in Rochdale as part of Rochdale Safeguarding
Board to ensure their voices are heard about how safe they felt in their community

 Provided young people with information about wellbeing services that they can access

Seven sessions were delivered in Rochdale and a total of 162 people engaged.  Sessions that 
took place were as part of CSE week of action, Feel Good Festival, Hopwood Hall College 
(stay safe and health week), Community Centre Health Event and Education and Awareness 
sessions for young people at risk of substance use. 

As a result of the work that was delivered the project achieved the following: 

 Raised awareness of the services that support various issues such as substance misuse,
CSE, sexual health, emotional health and well being

 Increased awareness around the risks attached to substance misuse

 Young people are able to make safer decision and reduce harm caused to substance use

 Professionals and community members are aware of the services provided by Early Break
and are more confident to contact the service about any concerns they have around
substance misuse and young people

 Young people aware of online support and services that can help with issues around
emotional wellbeing and substance misuse

 Young people requiring support are referred to Early Break to receive interventions to
reduce their substance misuse

Page 27



“They really enjoyed the trip to MOSI and also 
the treasure hunt.  It was good to see all the 
kids getting on and playing together” 
Dianne Riley 
Chairperson 

Greave Tenants & Residents Association 

Recipient: Greave Tenants & Residents Association 

Project: Greave Summer Playscheme 

Fund: Members Fund 

Awarded: £425.32 

Greave Tenants & Residents Association aims to improve the lives of the residents of 
Greave Estate and other users of the community base through providing a range of 
educational, social and recreational activities such as arts and crafts sessions, a playgroup, 
homework club, playscheme and IT skills sessions. 

The Greave Summer Playscheme 2016 provided local children aged 5 to 13 years old with 
the opportunity to participate in fun activities for the first two weeks of the school holidays.  
Every child who attended the playscheme was given a breakfast and dinner plus daily fresh 
fruit to promote healthy eating.  A programme of indoor and outdoor activities kept the 
children engaged with arts and crafts sessions to inspire their creativity, a sports tournament 
to learn about team skills, growing plants from seed to learn about nature and the 
environment, and an educational visit to the Manchester Museum of Science and Industry.  
The museum visit provided an opportunity for the children to experience and learn about the 
world’s first industrial city and make connections between the past and the present through a 
vibrant contemporary science programme. 

The programme of activities delivered during the Greave Summer Playscheme inspired local 
children to express their creativity, get active, socialise and build new friendships. 

Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



 

“The knowledge that we are creating 
greater habitat for wildlife to thrive in was 
a great highlight, we were able to help 
shape the future of the park physically” 
Paul Whiting 
Treasurer 

Friends of Denehurst Park 

Recipient: Friends of Denehurst Park 

Project: Denehurst Park Trees Planting & Restoration 

Fund: Clean & Green Priority Fund 

Awarded: £ 1,203 

Friends of Denehurst Park aim to provide opportunities to improve and promote the use of, 
awareness and care of facilities within Denehurst Park, in order to make them safe, 
welcoming and enjoyable for all, now and in the future.  The group since its establishment in 
2014 has been dedicated to restoring the original features of the park and developing the 
park as a community resource.  Two fruit tree orchards with over 100 trees along with a 
unique scrumping lane with various fruits and berry shrubs have been planted.  The Victorian 
sunken garden and herbaceous border have been restored and lost vistas into the rolling 
fields of the park have been opened up to create a safer and inviting place for people to visit.  
The friends group has been very active to ensure everyone who has a stake in the park has 
a voice and extensive consultation has taken place with local user groups and specialised 
groups to ensure the park is inclusive. 

The project aimed to enhance the landscape of Denehurst Park and create a new welcoming 
entrance into the park with a variety of plants to complete the herbaceous border and trees 
planted along the path leading from the reopened Willbutts Lane entrance to the sunken 
garden to create a colourful and unique attribute to the park.  Liquidamber and Robinia to 
Silver Birch and Scots pine trees were planted to create a mini arboretum feel to the park, 
and add interest throughout the four seasons with a range of colours unseen in most public 
parks.  Native hollies and other fruit bearing shrubs were planted to provide much needed 
food and shelter for the local wildlife. 

Friends of Denehurst Park have  
reported an increase in visitor  
numbers to the park and interest  
in both volunteering with gardening  
and through being a member of the 
friends of group.  The group has  
many aspirations for the park and  
the Masterplan proposes new  
footpaths, improved drainage,  
creation of a new inclusive play  
area and picnic area, a natural  
play area and tree sculptures. 

Page 31



“We have evaluated this project and 
feedback from participants has been 
very encouraging and positive” 
Sohail Ahmad 
Centre Manager 

Deeplish Community Centre 

Recipient: Deeplish Community Centre 

Project: Milkstone & Deeplish Health Initiative Group 

Fund: Ward Fund 

Awarded: £1,080 

Deeplish Community Centre provides a friendly, safe and welcoming environment for the 
local community and user groups, enabling them to participate in educational, social and 
learning activities.  The centre promotes cohesion, empowerment, integration and 
employment opportunities for the local community.  Encouraging participation in health and 
wellbeing activities through informal education and support is a priority. 

Milkstone & Deeplish Health Initiative Group met every Monday from 11am to 2pm at 
Deeplish Community Centre over the period of six months.  The group’s purpose was to 
promote health and wellbeing in the local community with support provided to the elderly and 
vulnerable people facing barriers due to health, age, mobility and access to safe and 
accessible transport.  Participants were given the opportunity to attend health seminars, 
exercise classes, educational and recreational sessions, day trips and health checks.  The 
sessions brought people together in the Milkstone and Deeplish community to reduce 
isolation and provided the local community with information and choices to improve their 
physical and mental health. 

“I may not be able to see anymore but 
that doesn’t upset me and I will never 
let it put me down, my light is the 
people I meet and they are my guide. 
That is enough for me” 

Feedback from participant 

“I look forward to attending the 
sessions every week.  No one has 
ever made me feel different, I feel like 
one of them” 

Feedback from participant 

Page 32



“We had a fabulous day and are very 
grateful to Rochdale Council, Locality, 
the BBC and the many people who 
supported our event!” 
Alan Rawsterne 
Trustee & Secretary 

Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum 

Recipient: Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum 

Project: Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum Launch Event and dedication to the 

Millworkers of Rochdale & the Cotton Famine Road 

Fund: Members Fund 

Awarded: £950 

Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum was established to promote high standards of planning 
and architecture in or affecting the area, educate the public in the geography, history, natural 
history, culture and architecture of the area and secure the preservation, protection, 
development and improvement of features or areas of historic or public interest in the area. 

On Sunday 14 August 2016 Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum arranged a launch event at 
Catley Lane Head, Rochdale for the forum and a dedication to the millworkers of Rochdale 
on the Cotton Famine Road.  The Rooley Moor neighbourhood area is considered to be a 
heritage asset because of its history, setting and architectural heritage and a dominant 
feature of the area is the Cotton Famine Road.  The purpose of the event was to raise 
awareness of the forum in the local community to encourage involvement and participation in 
achieving the aims of the forum.  The event was also an opportunity to inform people about 
the history of the Cotton Famine Road and support a BBC history project with a dedication 
service.  Forum members worked closely with the BBC to coincide the launch event with the 
unveiling of a plaque to commemorate Rochdale millworkers who suffered great hardship, 
but supported the abolition of slavery, during the Lancashire Cotton Famine (1861–65) 
brought about by the American Civil War.  The dedication and launch event was filmed by the 
BBC for inclusion in a programme aired in November 2016. 

Page 33



Forum chairman, Andy Meek, welcomed everyone to the event including the Mayor and 
Mayoress, Councillors and local star of stage and TV, Sue Devaney.  Forum trustee, 
Councillor Cecile Biant, gave a background to the forum and area and later in the day she 
read a speech by Richard Cobden who was a Rochdale MP at the time of the Cotton 
Famine.  Manchester University academic Dr David Brown gave a presentation about the 
history of the cotton millworkers and the support they gave to the abolition of slavery.  
Reverend Morley Morgan gave a dedication and Mayor Ray Dutton unveiled the plaque 
commemorating the cotton millworkers and said: “I am really proud to be here with 
descendants from the cotton mills.” 

Activities throughout the day included clog dancing on the cobbled road by community dance 
artist Alex Fisher, Littleborough Oakenhoof Folk Arts Group and the Rossendale Clog 
Heritage Dancers.  In the event field there was a cotton spinning demonstration, face 
painting, birds of prey, neighbourhood forum and local history displays, Skylight Circus Arts, 
and the Rochdale Ramblers and Rochdale & Bury Bridleways Association each had a 
display.  Touchstones Creative Writing Group gave a reading performance and Lancashire 
dialect researcher, Sid Calderbank, performed period poems, songs and stories.  
Refreshments were provided by the local Co-Op store, Lia’s Cakes and forum volunteers.  A 
crew from the BBC filmed the event and conducted interviews to be included in the 
programme ‘A Black History of Britain’. 

Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum continues to encourage people to visit and better 
understand the heritage and the many leisure activities such as walking, running, horse 
riding, cycling, ornithology and fishing that are available to pursue in the area. 

Page 34



Page 35



“It brought people together and 
enhanced the community spirit on the 
estate.  It was very successful - even 
more people came than last year!” 
Rev Angela Bryan 
Priest-in-Charge 

St Thomas’ Church, Kirkholt 

Recipient: St Thomas’ Church, Kirkholt 

Project: Balderstone & Kirkholt Community Event and Christmas Lights Switch On 

Fund: Members Fund 

Awarded: £1,772 

St Thomas’ Church on the Kirkholt estate hosts social events and provides practical help and 
support to the local community.  The building offers facilities for a variety of different 
community groups.  The church is keen to be involved in activities that build community on 
the estate, develops relationships between people, or which addresses social, economic or 
emotional deprivation.  The church is viewed as a valued community resource by local 
people. 

The Kirkholt estate has pockets of high social deprivation that contributes to social exclusion; 
these factors include mental illness, poverty, poor education, and low socioeconomic status.  
Christmas is often considered a lonely part of the year where people do not have family and 
friends to visit.  It can also be expensive for families.  St Thomas’ Church applied for a grant 
to host a free event with the aim of bringing people together.  The event celebrated the start 
of the festive season and the Christmas Tree lights switch on. 

The church welcomed over 250 people from the Balderstone and Kirkholt ward to enjoy the 
Around the World in 80 Days themed community event on Thursday 24 November 2016.  
This free event operated a passport system to ensure everyone got an opportunity to enjoy 
the activities and food.  Entertainment was provided by K Stars Morris Troupe, Young@Heart 
Singers and Oakenhoof.  Fun activities for local  
children throughout the event were craft  
sessions with SureStart including global  
landmark wreath craft, storytelling, Around  
the World in 80 Moves game, henna and  
global landmark tattoos and biscuit decorating  
by the Tesco Community Champion.  The  
Around the World in 80 Days theme continued  
with a hot air balloon photo booth and tasty 
Caribbean and Polish cuisine.  Local police 
and the fire service attended the event with 
their mascots to offer advice on community 
safety operations over the winter months.   
A lively procession of local people made their 
way to the Christmas tree at The Strand to  
enjoy the switch on of the Christmas lights at  
the end of the event. 

Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



“…helped new emerging communities and 
refugees learn how to cook simple meals as 
well as safety in the kitchen” 
Saqub Hussain 
Area Youth Worker 

Rochdale Youth Services 

Recipient: Rochdale Youth Services 

Project: Youth Services Summer Programme 2016 

Fund: Communities & Engagement Priority Fund 

Awarded: £1,000 

Rochdale Youth Service delivered a six week summer programme for young people from 
various different communities within Rochdale Township.  Young people were encouraged to 
participate in positive activities that promoted health, life skills and community cohesion.  The 
programme offered a wide variety of activities to ensure the young people are engaged, 
benefit from meeting different people and developing relationships, and focus their energies 
into positive pursuits that boost their confidence and self-esteem. 

Building a Pushcart Workshop – Young people came together to build a pushcart for the 
Rochdale Youth Service Pushcart Derby.  The pushcart was made from mostly recycled 
items and the team went on to win the race.  The young people thoroughly enjoyed the 
experience and helped their rivals to repair and improve on their pushcarts. 

Cooking Workshops – Young people (both males and females) got the opportunity to share 
their cultures and learn to get to know each other better through cookery sessions.  The 
variety of dishes made included pasta, omelettes, chick pea curry, egg and onion curry, 
cakes, cupcakes and fruit kebabs. 

Arts & Crafts Workshops – Some great art work was created and it is currently displayed in 
youth clubs across Rochdale.   Also the young people were encouraged to demonstrate their 
creativity and redecorate the youth centres to give them a fresh new look. 

Health Workshops – Sexual health advice is offered to young people, chlamydia screenings 
and condom distribution.  To increase participation and raise awareness of the workshops, 
every person who registered was entered into a raffle with a chance of winning a £50 gift 
card for high street shops. 

Martial Arts & Defence Sessions – Saturday workshops were established at Rochdale 
Leisure Centre for young females to learn martial arts and self defence to build their 
confidence and self-esteem.  A number of young females have started to attend local martial 
arts clubs having been inspired at the workshops. 

Social media was used to promote the activities and celebrate the achievements of the young 
people who participated in the Youth Services Summer Programme.  Local young people 
gained new skills, increased their knowledge and were inspired to try something new. 

Page 39



Push Cart Workshop 

Page 40



“Highlights have been cooking hot lovely meals with a cultural twist, and getting young 
females to take part in martial arts and self-defence sessions.  Finishing the pushcart and 
entering the race but the best highlight was young people helping other competitors repair 
their pushcarts when they got damaged and one pushcart was unrepairable so the lads 
carried the cart over the finishing line so everyone finished the race and all celebrated 
together.  Well done and so proud all young people involved” 
Saqub Hussain 

Area Youth Worker, Rochdale Youth Services 

Health Workshop 

Page 41



Cooking Workshops 

Page 42



Arts & Crafts Workshops 

Muay Thai Workshops 

Page 43



“We believe we have been very 
successful in promoting the civic twinning 
and the association friendship with 
Tourcoing.  …enjoying and participating 
in a wide range of activities served to 
foster social connections” 
Kathryn Rennie 
General Secretary 

Friends of Tourcoing Association 

Recipient: Friends of Tourcoing Association 
Project: Friends of Tourcoing Association celebration for 50 years of Civic Twinned 

Township Friendship 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £500 

Friends of Tourcoing Association aims to interest and inform the people of the Rochdale 
Borough about France and in particular the twinned town of Tourcoing.  The association 
promotes friendship, mutual respect and diversity.  The civic twinning relationship with 
Tourcoing has achieved 60 years and the friendship group a fantastic 50 years, bringing 
English and French together in community spirit and warm relationship.  Local people are 
offered the opportunity to engage in friendly social activities throughout the year and in 
particular, to access a bi annual trip to France to meet Les Amis de Rochdale, enjoying a 
civic reception from the Mayor of Tourcoing and sightseeing.  Many members have 
established solid friendships with their hosts over the years and return the hospitality to the 
French when they come to England to visit.  Friends of Tourcoing members actively take part 
in community events within the borough and contribute to the Mayor’s Charity as they have 
enjoyed civic patronage since their formation. 

A programme of activities in 2016 to celebrate 50 years of Tourcoing association friendship 
and 60 years of civic twinning promoted a positive image of the borough and its people.  
Friends of Tourcoing worked in partnership with community organisations and a school and 
patronised local businesses who all received credit for contributing to a successful visit. 

Page 44



Caldershaw Primary School (linked with Condorcet Primary School in Tourcoing) children 
hosted an afternoon of games and gave a choir performance, Heywood’s GPD Travel 
provided transport, students from Hopwood Hall College made and presented a celebratory 
cake, The Angel Project Community Café in the heart of Langley, Middleton welcomed the 
French guests and local potter Ken Isherwood produced commemorative bowls for the 
visitors.  The venues of the Coop Museum, Touchstones, Greater Manchester Fire Service 
Museum and St John The Baptist Church welcomed the visitors with special tours and 
entertainment was provided throughout the visit with performances from St Ann’s Morris 
Troupe, Wardle Senior Band and Skylight Circus Arts.  The Civic Dinner at Rochdale Town 
Hall hosted by the Mayor and Mayoress attended by the French guests of Deputy Mayor 
Didier Droart, President of Les Amis de Rochdale Mme Marie-Christine Lejenun, French 
Councillors Dorian and Sebastian Becue and Peter Maenout with other members of Les 
Amis de Rochdale was a special occasion with catering provided by Crofters and a 
performance by Lancashire Fusiliers Corp of Drums.  The local economy benefited from the 
visit with the French guests dining at local restaurants, hiring local transport and buying 
numerous souvenirs. 

Friends of Tourcoing Association considered the highlight of the programme was the 
spectacular celebration with 140 people at the 50th Celebration Dinner at Rochdale Town 
Hall.  The occasion was an opportunity to recognise special members of both Friends of 
Tourcoing and Les Amis de Rochdale.  Gifts were presented to Mrs Dorothy Forshaw in 
recognition of 50 years membership of Friends of Tourcoing and Christopher Dobby received 
a gift for having been a member of Les Amis since 1966 and at the age of 92 continues to 
take part in the exchanges.  Jean-Pierre Collado was presented with a gift in recognition of 
his contribution to Twinning and this was his 115th visit to the borough.  He began in 1971 as 
organiser of exchanges for schools and community groups and is remembered by many 
children now adults.  The programme of activities in 2016 to celebrate 50 years of Tourcoing 
friendship consolidated the association’s aims and aspirations. 

Page 45



Page 46



APPENDIX 5

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDING STREAMS 2017/18

REVENUE FUNDS 2017/18 = £342,583

Fund b/f 2016/17 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2017/18
Committed

Budget Available 

2017/18
Notes

REVENUE FUNDS

Projects Fund £9,485 £19,800 £27,300 £56,585 £0 £56,585 Fund to resource larger revenue and Rochdale Township 

wide projects that meet the Township priorities.  Base 

budget of £19,800 with £9,485 unallocated funds b/f from 

2016/17 and £27,300 (see income/adjustments column) 

received from Rochdale's Public Health Service to be 

allocated to health and wellbeing related projects to benefit 

the local community.

Members Fund £0 £54,000 £0 £54,000 £0 £54,000 Fund to resource smaller revenue projects that address 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community 

and environment.  Base budget of £54,000 will provide each 

Rochdale Township Councillor with £2,000 to allocate to 

revenue projects within their Ward.

Ward Fund £0 £64,800 £0 £64,800 £0 £64,800 Fund to resource smaller revenue projects that address 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community 

and environment.  Base budget of £64,800 will provide each 

Rochdale Township Ward with £7,200 to allocate to projects 

within their Ward.

Rochdale Town Centre 

Fund

£0 £7,200 £0 £7,200 £0 £7,200 Fund of £7,200 to resource smaller revenue projects 

specific to Rochdale Town Centre.

Clean & Green Priority 

Fund

£0 £20,000 £0 £20,000 £0 £20,000 Fund of £20,000 will provide Rochdale Township with a 

revenue funding stream to allocate to environmental 

projects.  The Clean & Green Priority Group will 

identify/develop the projects and influence funding decisions 

and monitor progress.

Communities & 

Engagement Priority 

Fund

£0 £20,000 £0 £20,000 £0 £20,000 Fund of £20,000 will provide Rochdale Township with a 

revenue funding stream to allocate to community projects.  

The Communities & Engagement Priority Group will 

identify/develop the projects and influence funding decisions 

and monitor progress.

Township Allocated 

Funds

£119,998 £0 £0 £119,998 £0 £119,998 Brought forward budget of £119,998 for pre 2017/18 

approved projects.

TOTAL £129,483 £185,800 £27,300 £342,583

Page 1 of 2

P
age 47



CAPITAL FUNDS 2017/18 = £220,060

CAPITAL FUNDS

Fund b/f 2016/17 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2017/18
Committed

Budget Available 

2017/18
Notes

Capital Fund £29,720 £182,000 £0 £211,720 £8,700 £203,020 Fund to resource larger capital projects that meet the 

Township priorities.  Base budget of £182,000 with retained 

budget of £8,700 (see committed column) for pre 2017/18 

approved projects.

Armed Forces Fund £8,340 £0 £0 £8,340 £0 £8,340 Fund for updating and enhancing existing memorials and 

introducing new memorials to commemorate the centenary 

of the First World War (1914-1918).  A budget of £20,000 

for a four year period was allocated in 2014/15.

TOTAL £38,060 £182,000 £0 £220,060

Page 2 of 2

P
age 48



 

Form RT03 1 

RROOCCHHDDAALLEE  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDD  TTEERRMMSS  AANNDD  CCOONNDDIITTIIOONNSS  22001177//1188 
 

 

Rochdale Township’s vision is to create a friendly, clean and safe Township characterised by harmonious 

and diverse communities.  We want the town to be proud of its co-operative spirit and industrial heritage; to 

build on these qualities for a prosperous future as part of the City Region.  Efforts to increase community 

cohesion and involvement from people of different generations, backgrounds and cultures must permeate 

all activities. 
 

 

1. Purpose of the fund 

 

Councillors, Council Services, partner agencies, third sector organisations and area forums can submit 

projects on relevant application forms for funding from Rochdale Township Funds.  All projects must show 

how they will address the Rochdale Township priorities of: 

 

 People – We will safeguard and protect our vulnerable people and support people of all ages to be 

healthier, confident, and resilient, in control and successfully managing their lives.  We will enable 

communities to thrive and develop. 

 Place – We will create safe, resilient, flourishing and high quality places where people choose to live, 

work and invest. 

 Prosperity - We will encourage business growth and enterprise; increase our skills levels and create 

the conditions for the creation of good quality jobs. 

 

Rochdale Township will also make recommendations, influence and monitor the development of projects 

that meet the Township priorities through two Priority Groups.  The Clean & Green Priority Group will 

work with services, partners, businesses, local people and groups to attain and maintain high 

environmental standards for our public spaces and assets.  The Communities & Engagement Priority 

Group will encourage residents and community groups to get involved in shaping and delivering services 

and initiatives to meet local needs. 

 

2. Projects must be 

 

a) Within the powers of the Council. 

b) Supplement or enhance current Council service provision. 

c) Benefit the Township community. 

d) Support the Township’s priorities and the Township Plan. 

e) Be sponsored by a Rochdale Township Councillor who is prepared to recommend the project/grant and 

justify its significance to the Township’s priorities. 

 

3. Who may apply? 

 

a) Council Services. 

b) Partner organisations (Link4Life, etc). 

c) Non-profit making formally constituted groups with their own group bank account. 

 

4. Activities that can be funded 

 

a) Promoting active citizenship, voluntary effort and democratic involvement. 

APPENDIX 6 

Page 49



 

Form RT03 2 

b) Promoting community-led food-growing, horticulture and landscaping. 

c) Promoting community cohesion. 

d) Promoting safer neighbourhoods, including diversionary activities for young people.  

e) Promoting healthy living. 

f) Promoting inter-generational understanding and cooperation. 

g) Promoting equality of opportunity for people with disabilities. 

h) Promoting cycling, walking and horse riding and developing routes for these. 

i) Promoting Rochdale’s heritage. 

j) Increasing recycling and waste minimisation. 

k) Starting up or reviving community groups, subject to the group working with a recognised agency 

(Link4Life, CVS, etc.). 

a) Purchase of street furniture eg seating, paving, railings, bollards, fencing, lights, CCTV. 

b) Equipment hire or purchase, eg IT, sports, arts and crafts materials and equipment. 

c) Publicity materials that recognise the contribution made by Township. 

d) Specialist trainers/assessors to deliver qualifications/courses/activities. 

e) Wages or expenses for permanent, contract or regular members of staff in addition to normal duties. 

f) Hiring or renting of venues to enable the project to be delivered (not general running costs). 

g) Hiring of vehicles: short-term hire only, and not where there is viable public transport alternative. 

h) Trips and outings with an educational value or part of larger programme. 

 

6. Activities that may not be funded 

 

a) Activities already started before funding is awarded. 

b) Work that would normally be funded through mainstream budgets, that duplicates or replaces existing 

services or that the Council or other body has a statutory obligation to provide. 

c) Parties. 

d) Promoting religious or political causes. 

e) Projects to benefit individuals. 

f) Improvements to private land, unless there is a demonstrable community benefit.  

g) Repairing unadopted roads. 

h) Campaigning or carrying out activities to influence a Council decision in the exercise of its statutory 

functions. 

i) Contributing to charitable collections or running fund-raising events. 

j) General running costs, eg utility bills, maintenance and repair of assets, etc. 

 

7. Items that may not be purchased with Township funds 

 

a) Alcoholic drinks. 

b) Motor vehicles. 

c) Items bought before Township has given written approval. 

d) Insurance. 

5. Items that can be funded 

Page 50



 

Form RT03 3 

 

8. Responsibilities of community groups applying for or in receipt of a grant 

 

a) To submit applications on the correct form. 

b) To only submit proposals that meet the terms and conditions and promote agreed priorities and 

objectives in a cost-effective way. 

c) To use grants only for the purposes for which it was approved.  Any requests for change of use must be 

made in writing and is subject to the Townships & Communities Manager’s discretion. 

d) To seek approval in writing from the Townships & Communities Manager to make changes to the 

breakdown of expenditure. 

e) To make claims for approved funding within 6 months of approval.  Any extension to this period must be 

made in writing and is subject to the Townships & Communities Manager’s discretion. 

f) Successful applicants must complete and return a project evaluation form and provide copy 

invoices/receipts that reflect the amount awarded and purpose for which the grant was approved as 

detailed in the application form.  This information must be provided to Rochdale Township Office within 

one month of the conclusion of the project.  Failure to return these documents will result in restrictions 

being imposed on the applicant relating to future requests for funding or reclaiming of the grant monies. 

g) To claim VAT on purchases relating to the project only if they cannot claim it back from HM Revenue 

and Customs. 

h) To ensure that all necessary permissions (such as planning permission), regulations (such as health 

and safety) and insurance relating to their scheme/event are in place. 

i) To have adequate policies and procedures in place to protect children, young people or vulnerable 

adults when applying for a project to work with such people. 

j) To ensure adequate insurance (eg public liability) is in place if required. 

k) To agree that funding received for a project does not imply any commitment by the Council to continue 

funding after the agreed finishing date. 

l) To seek approval from the Townships & Communities Manager to dispose of or transfer any items 

acquired with the grant. 

 

9. Responsibilities of Services commissioned to deliver projects 

 

a) To abide by the commissioning process set out in Section 15. 

b) To complete a project brief and supply supporting documentation. 

c) To ensure alternative funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future 

maintenance/monitoring requirements. 

d) To seek approval in writing from the Townships & Communities Manager to make changes to the 

breakdown of expenditure or timescale of delivery. 

 

10. Responsibilities of Township Office 

 

a) To ensure the application and decision-making process set out in section 13 is followed. 

b) To make payment of the grant upon receipt of invoices/receipts, subject to 11b below. 

Page 51



 

Form RT03 4 

 

11. Responsibilities of Townships & Communities Manager 

 

a) To make decisions, in consultation with the Ward Councillors, about the future of the project when a 

Councillor has committed funds to a project and subsequently decided not to stand for election or has 

not been re-elected.  

b) To consider requests for pro-forma payment of the grant (which must be made in writing), on receipt of 

pro-forma invoices (an official quotation from the supplier). 

 

12. Limitations 

 

a) The Council does not accept any liability for damage, loss or future maintenance of any projects funded 

by Township Funds. 

b) The Council reserves the right to withhold or reclaim the grant monies if the terms and conditions are 

not adhered to. 

c) The Council reserves the right to add specific conditions relating to payment of the grant, the purpose of 

the grant and/or the activities to be funded. 

 

13. Application and Decision Making Process 

 

a) Council Member or Officer submits Project Proposal Form (RT01) to Township Office. 

b) Township Office will send Application Form (RT02) to group or invite Project Brief from Service. 

c) Township Office checks application form to see if the project meets the terms and conditions of the 

fund. 

d) Township Office refers back proposals not meeting the terms and conditions or incomplete application 

forms to the applicant within 10 working days with a written explanation, and may request applicants to 

supply additional information. 

e) Township Office refers proposals for funding over £5,000 to the next Rochdale Township Action and 

Resources Committee for decision. 

f) Township Office will use the officer scheme of delegation for proposals for funding of £5,000 or less. 

g) Township Office will refer projects to be funded from Ward Funds to Area Forum Sub Groups to seek 

their support and submit for delegated decision on confirmation of majority agreement to a project. 

h) Any disputes concerning the allocation of funds will be referred to the next Rochdale Township Action 

and Resources Committee for decision. 

i) Township Office will notify applicants of decisions in writing within 15 working days of a Committee 

decision or within 5 working days of an officer decision. 

j) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application. 

 

14. Delegated Decision Making Process 

 

a) Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition 

Spokespersons of Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee, may decide on all projects for 

£5,000 or less. 

b) Township Office will ask Members to respond in writing within 10 working days.  A nil response is 

considered a response in support of the application. 

c) Members will make decisions based on the information included in the application form. 

Page 52



 

Form RT03 5 

d) Township Office will advise applicants in writing within 15 working days of a decision on the outcome of 

their application. 

e) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application. 

f) Township Office will make a written record of the officer decision: 

i. Project reference number. 

ii. Description of project. 

iii. Officer decision. 

iv. Date of decision. 

v. Reasons for decision. 

vi. Comments received from the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition Spokespersons with dates. 

vii. Township Office will ask Members to state the reasons for not supporting the officer’s decision. 

 

15. Commissioning Process 

 

a) All parties to do everything within their power to ensure the completion of the project to the 

specification and achieve the desired outcome within the specified timescale and costs. 

b) Proposed projects need to be developed in consultation with the relevant Service to ensure alternative 

funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future 

maintenance/monitoring requirements. 

c) The Service Provider should negotiate with Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee prior 

to incurring any additional costs if they wish to make variations in costs or outcomes. 

d) Where Township wishes to vary the specification – the Service Provider will identify the implications of 

the change, ie time extensions, impact on outcomes, etc and additional costs, and agree the variations 

with the Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee. 

e) Where a Service Provider wishes to vary the specification, they should submit the variations to the 

Townships & Communities Manager with justification prior to incurring additional costs for 

consideration by the Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee.  The Committee may 

decide not to accept the variations in which case the project continues to the original specification or if 

the Committee accepts the variations, to agree the funding of any additional costs from the Township 

Funds. 

f) The Service Provider will receive sufficient budget transferred from the Township Fund to cover the 

cost of the project on the Townships & Communities Manager receiving evidence of the start of the 

project as agreed.  Stage payments may be agreed. 

g) The Service Provider agrees to provide regular monitoring reports on the project in terms of achieving 

the outcomes, performance against targets and finance, and post project evaluation reports. 

h) Where a Service Provider does not satisfy the performance targets for the project, the Rochdale 

Township Action and Resources Committee may, after consultation with the Service Provider, withhold 

funds (or withdraw funds previously transferred to a Council Service). 

i) The Service Provider must bear any unapproved additional costs incurred, unless agreed otherwise 

with the Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee. 

j) Service Providers external to the Council will be required to submit invoices for payment. 

 

Page 53



Report to Rochdale Township Committee

Date of Meeting 29 June 2017

Portfolio Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Regeneration

Report Author Kaija-Luisa Kurik

Public/Private Document Public

Consultation of Catley Lane Head Conservation Area Appraisal

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 imposes a 
duty on local planning authorities to survey and keep under review their district 
for areas which are of special architectural or historic interest, the character of 
which it is desirable to preserve or enhance, and to designate those areas as 
conservation areas. This duty is an ongoing requirement of local authorities.

Conservation area appraisals are produced in order to identify the special 
architectural and historic character of significant areas, to guide development 
and to inform effective management plans. 

Catley Lane Head area is recommended for conservation area designation in 
order to provide a framework for controlled and positive change in the hamlet. 
Establishing a conservation area would help to protect the heritage of this well 
preserved and relatively sensitively restored hamlet by bringing attention to its 
unique landscape and architecture as well as provide the local community with 
strong sense of identity and pride. 

This report requests approval for initiating public consultation of the Catley 
Lane Head draft conservation area appraisal. 

Recommendation

2.1 It is recommended that the Rochdale Township Committee:
 Approves for public consultation the draft conservation area appraisal 

attached in Appendix 1
 Approves the consultation strategy for the conservation area as set out 

in this report, following which a further report will be brought to the 
Township Committee detailing the results of the consultation and to 
seek adoption of the final appraisal

Reason for Recommendation

Page 54

Agenda Item 11



3.1

3.2

Catley Lane Head is considered to be an area of historic and architectural 
interest worthy of preservation and enhancement. The production of a draft 
conservation area appraisal has established the intrinsic heritage value of the 
area and its setting, local consultation and feedback will support the appraisal 
resulting in a comprehensive document that will assist the council when 
assessing development proposals through the planning process. 

Catley Lane Head demonstrates vernacular architecture which reflects the 
historic industries along the line of historic routes. The evolution of the hamlet 
is still evident in the built environment and landscape, including mill ponds and 
farmland. The general character of the proposed conservation area is typified 
by its use of vernacular architecture and materials and its rural setting. This 
applies also to the historic Cotton Famine Road, which is a predominant 
feature of the proposed conservation area. The conservation area designation 
was recommended by the Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Association. 

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

Whilst the level of publicity to be made to the draft conservation area appraisal 
is discretionary, it is proposed to allow a period of public consultation of 28 
days on the draft document. This accords with best practice. 

Proposed consultation:

It is proposed to undertake consultation on a number of levels
 Consultation of amenity and other groups: Consultation on the draft 

appraisal will take place with local heritage and amenity groups within 
the Township.  

 Consultation of owners/tenants: Letters will be sent out to all property 
owners and occupiers within the proposed Catley Lane Head 
Conservation Area directing interested parties to the Council website 
and local libraries (where hard copies will be made available). 
Invitations to contact or meet with relevant members of the Planning 
Department regarding this will also be offered.

 Media: Work will be carried out with the RBC Communications Team to 
publicise consultation and proposals on the RBC website, through 
social media and a press release. The results of these consultations will 
inform the final appraisal document. A summary of the public responses 
to the document will be presented in a subsequent report to Township 
seeking Member adoption of the appraisal.

Alternatives Considered

 To not undertake a detailed conservation area appraisal at this time 
would result in a lack of appreciation of the heritage value and leave the 
area vulnerable to development of its physical fabric and rural setting. 

 To seek to adopt the conservation area appraisal without obtaining 
local feedback into its development would also undermine the value 
and quality of the appraisal. 

Page 55



Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

6.2

The process of reviewing the condition and status of areas of architectural 
and historic interest mitigates the risk of loss of buildings and features of 
special interest along with the context and setting of the heritage assets.

There are no significant policy implications arising from this report.

Consultation

7.1 This report is the start of a formal consultation process. There has been 
involvement in drawing up this conservation area appraisal by Rooley Moor 
Neighbourhood Association. A further report will come to Rochdale Township 
for formal adoption of the Catley Lane Head Conservation Area following the 
public consultation. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Catley Lane Head Conservation 
Area Appraisal Draft Document

For Further Information Contact: Kaija-Luisa Kurik, Kaija-
luisa.Kurik@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Page 56



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

  

 

John Groves 

Head of Planning 

Planning Services 

Directorate of Economy 

and Environment 

 Conservation & 

Design 

Rochdale Borough 

Council 

Number One 

Riverside 

Smith Street 

Rochdale 

OL16 1XU 

  Telephone:  

0845 121 2973 

CATLEY 

LANE 

HEAD 

CONSERVATION 

AREA 

APPRAISAL 

DRAFT June 2017 

Page 57

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwit5cHQoc_NAhVjC8AKHUxdAz0QjRwIBw&url=http://www.urbanstonesculpture.com/&psig=AFQjCNEbI0phg9pcJJPjflFor4w4B3PZIw&ust=1467359327068943


2 
 

 

 
 

This is a draft appraisal document. Catley Lane Head is recommended for the conservation area 

designation because of its well preserved vernacular architecture and historic layout. 

  

Page 58



3 
 

 

 

INTRODUCTION ....................................................................................................................................... 5 

Planning policy context ....................................................................................................................... 6 

Brief overview of Catley Lane Head .................................................................................................... 7 

LOCATION AND CONTEXT ....................................................................................................................... 8 

Historic development & significance .................................................................................................. 8 

Timeline of landmark events ............................................................................................................ 11 

The area today .................................................................................................................................. 13 

KEY CHARACTERISTICS .......................................................................................................................... 14 

SPATIAL ANALYSIS ................................................................................................................................. 15 

The relationship between spaces ..................................................................................................... 15 

Topography and setting .................................................................................................................... 16 

Key views and vistas .......................................................................................................................... 17 

Architectural character ..................................................................................................................... 21 

Traditional building materials ....................................................................................................... 21 

Significant structures, roads, elements, buildings ........................................................................ 22 

Historic walls ................................................................................................................................. 27 

Paving ................................................................................................................................................ 28 

Gardens, green spaces and biodiversity ........................................................................................... 29 

CHARACTER APPRAISAL ........................................................................................................................ 31 

General character and plan form ...................................................................................................... 31 

Positive contribution ..................................................................................................................... 31 

Negative contribution ................................................................................................................... 33 

SWOT Analysis................................................................................................................................... 35 

CONCLUSION ......................................................................................................................................... 37 

REFERENCES .......................................................................................................................................... 38 

 

 

Page 59

file:///S:/CON%20&%20DES%20FILES/6%20CONSERVATION%20AREAS/Catley%20Lane%20Head%20-%20assessing/CATLEY%20LANE%20HEAD%2026.5.2017.docx%23_Toc484098493


4 
 

 

Page 60



5 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 

Conservation area appraisals are produced in order to identify the special architectural and 

historic character of significant areas, to guide development and to inform effective 

management plans. This document gives an overview of the history and character of Catley 

Lane Head area in order to provide a framework for controlled and positive change in the 

hamlet. The settlement is located in north-west Rochdale and is situated in Green Belt; it is 

therefore already protected from harmful development to some extent. Establishing a 

conservation area would help to further protect the heritage of this well preserved and 

relatively sensitively restored hamlet by bringing attention to its unique landscape and 

architecture as well as provide the local community with strong sense of identity and pride.  

This conservation area appraisal is based on site visits, the Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Area 

Heritage Appraisal written by Jenny Wetton in 2015, archive materials, information from local 

residents and guidance documents provided by Historic England.  

 

  

Page 61



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

Planning policy context 
 

 

 

Section 69 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 imposes a duty 

on local planning authorities to survey and keep under review their district for areas which 

are of special architectural or historic interest, the character of which it is desirable to 

preserve or enhance, and to designate those areas as conservation areas. This duty is an on-

going requirement of local authorities.  

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that the local planning authority should 

“recognise that heritage assets are an irreplaceable resource and conserve them in a 

manner appropriate to their significance”. 

Rochdale Borough has conservation and design policies to sustain and enhance its heritage 

assets and to ensure new development respects the historic environment. These policies can 

be accessed on the Council’s website: www.rochdale.gov.uk/planning.   

 “Priority will be given to the practical conservation and enhancement of those features of 

the built environment which are the most valuable, in particular: Conservation Areas...such 

buildings, areas and features of architectural and historic merit will be protected from 

adverse development or demolition and positive measures will be taken or supported, 

wherever possible, to facilitate their continual upkeep and beneficial use”  

Catley Lane Head has been identified as an area of architectural and historic significance. 

The designation of this area as a conservation area was proposed in order to protect its 

significance and character for the future.  

Conservation area designation gives the local planning authority extra controls to preserve 

the special character and appearance of the area, including: 

 

• The demolition of buildings and boundary walls 

• Alterations and extensions to dwelling houses 

• Alterations and extensions to commercial, retail, educational and hospital buildings 

• Advertisements 

• The installation of satellite dishes on walls, roof slopes and chimneys that face and are 

visible from highways 

• Work to any tree with a trunk of more than 7.5cm in diameter (measured 1.5m from the 

ground) 

 

These controls are not intended to prevent the changing needs of communities; however it is 

important that any changes are sensitive to the character and heritage of the area.

  

Page 62



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

Brief overview of Catley Lane Head 

 

The historic Pennines hamlet Catley Lane Head sits within the rural landscape of north-west 

Rochdale and is the gateway to Rooley Moor. It contains one listed building (Smallshaw 

Farm) and a number of significant buildings that add to the character and show the 

development of the hamlet. The rural setting of the hamlet contributes to its unique 

character.  

 

The conservation area includes Brownhill Farm in the south, the listed Smallshaw Farm in the 

east, a significant section of Rooley Moor Road up to Knacks Lane in the north-west and 

Hunger Hill Farm to the west. The conservation area also includes three ponds, a stream, 

features such as setted roads and dry stone walls, and a number of vernacular houses. 

 

 

 

The suggested conservation area border 

Page 63



8 
 

LOCATION AND CONTEXT 
  

Historic development & significance 
 

The first record of housing in the Catley Lane Head area dates from the 16th century, but 

many houses that are still in existence today were built between the 17th to the 20th century. 

Historically the population consisted of miners, quarrymen, and factory operatives employed 

in the Smallshaw Mill. From 1845 onwards a Sunday School was active in the hamlet then 

known as Lanehead (Handley). A new chapel was built in 1857 and enlarged with an 

additional storey in 1872. 

 

 

 

The area faced economic decline during the late 19th and early 20th centuries and some 

public buildings, including the chapel, have been demolished (Wetton, 2015). It is difficult to 

give exact dates for these key transformations in the hamlet due to a lack of records, but 

many of these developments can be read from historic maps.  

Methodist Chapel and Sunday School visible on the right (now demolished). Source: Private collection.  

C.1910 

Page 64



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

  
1851, Wetton. The first map to show the area in detail.  Source: Touchstones 

1894.  The late 19th century layout is very similar to the present day. Fairly little has changed in Catley 

Lane Head.  Source: Touchstones 

Page 65



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

1909 

1931 map again shows little change.  Source: Touchstones 

Page 66



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

 

  

Terraces on Rooley Moor Road in 1959 

(Source: Private Collection) and the 

same road in 2016 

 

Timeline of landmark events 

 

13th Century Likely construction of Rooley Moor 

Road. 

The road begins in Catley Lane and divides the 

hamlet in two. It appears to have been built to 

provide a route across the moors from 

Spotland to Rossendale, possibly in the 13th 

century (Wetton, 2015. Nevell, Ilradil, 2003). 

 

19th Century Smallshaw Mill  

This cotton mill was built by Jacob Tweedale & 

Sons in the nineteenth century (Handley). 

During the time the mill operated there were 

also two active coal pits in the area.  

 

1845 Lanehead Sunday School opened. 

 

1857 Construction of the Wesleyan Methodist 

Chapel and Sunday School. 

 

1860s Construction of the Cotton Famine Road 

 

1872 Extension of the chapel 

 

17th-20th Century Main housing development 

 

1960s Demolition of the Methodist Chapel 

The focal point of the hamlet, the Wesleyan 

Methodist Chapel was demolished around 

1960. Several cottages and the Black Dog pub 

have also been demolished over the years.  

 

 

 

 

731 and 733 Rooley Moor Road. Source: 

Touchstones 

Page 67



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Construction of the bus turning circle in 

1982 and the circle in 2016 

25 Smallshaw Road 

A modern building on Rooley Moor Road 

1980s Highway improvements on Rooley Moor 

Road, including the bus turning circle. 

In the 1980s the Council improved Rooley Moor 

Road and constructed a bus turning circle just 

to the North of Catley Lane Head.  

Buildings were also altered, for example 

cottages 731 and 733 Rooley Moor Road were 

converted into one house (Wetton, 2015). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1990’s-2000’s New buildings 

There are only few modern buildings in the 

area. A modern dwelling on Rooley Moor 

Road uses traditional stone and is not seen as 

a negative development. 

25 Smallshaw Road stands out as the red brick 

walling is out of character with the local 

vernacular materials.  

 

 

 

Page 68



13 
 

 

 

 

 

 

The area today 
 

Catley Lane Head is a quiet hamlet with the majority of buildings quite sensitively restored 

and in residential or agricultural use. The area is characterised by vernacular architecture 

and materials as well as its rural setting (Wetton, 2015).  Some harmful architectural elements 

have been added, such as uPVC windows and modern dormers. In some cases houses also 

include contemporary conservatories which are generally seen as neutral rather than 

detrimental to the heritage value of the area. Public functions such as the chapel, pubs and 

a local shop have disappeared and the buildings have either been demolished or 

converted into residential use. 

The landscape is diverse with former quarries, smallholdings and grazing land surrounding the 

settlement and leading to open moorland. Rooley Moor Road (also known as the Cotton 

Famine Road) leads across the moor to the north. There are three well maintained reservoirs 

surrounded by landscaping by private landowners. These once fed the former mills in the 

area (now demolished).  

Popular leisure activities in the area include fishing, hiking, ornithology, running, mountain 

biking and horse riding.  

  

Page 69



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

KEY CHARACTERISTICS 
 

The key assets of the conservation area are: 

 The rural setting 

 The use of sandstone as a building material including walling and roofing 

 Dry stone walls with details such as water troughs and openings 

 Vernacular buildings and detailing typical of the Pennine range 

 Stone setts, kerbs and flags 

 Evidence of the former industry including the mill ponds and workers cottages 

 Tangible evidence of a typical rural Pennine settlement, including the remains of the 

Methodist Chapel with a section of flagstone boundary wall, and architectural details 

of a local shop within one of the houses. 

 Rooley Moor Road, a former pack horse route 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 70



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

SPATIAL ANALYSIS 

The relationship between spaces 

 
The relationship between the built environment and open spaces is critical to the character 

of the conservation area. Connections between public and private spaces, natural 

landscapes and farmland define the atmosphere of the hamlet. The moorland landscape is 

divided by historic dry stone walls that display a number of interesting details such as water 

troughs and stone gate posts. Reservoirs and the former quarry spoil give context to the 

former industry in the area. Private gardens and farmland are contrasted by natural spaces 

that are accessible for anglers, walkers and explorers. Historic pavements meet tarmac roads 

and the setted Cotton Famine Road leads up to the hills. Some spaces have a negative 

impact on the area, including the concrete bus turning circle created in the 1980s which 

creates and eyesore in this vernacular rural landscape.  

Housing on Smallshaw Road, the reservoir and gardens demonstrate the mix of spaces.  

Page 71



16 
 

 

Topography and setting 

 

The close relationship between the surrounding landscape and the conservation area is 

critical to its particular character and significance. The dramatic setting of Catley Lane Head 

is integral to its uniqueness and sense of place. The open moorland rises away from the 

settlement to the north and the landscape falls to the south towards Rochdale and 

Manchester. To the west of the settlement is a gentle escarpment and to the east the 

Pennine range is visible for miles past the nature reserve and wooded valley Healey Dell. The 

geology of the area is carboniferous sandstone with a mixture of flags, sandstone, mudstone 

and siltstone overlaid in places with glacial deposits including clays, sand and gravel. The 

landscape is scattered with bogs and springs. The Rooley Moor road crosses the moor and 

provides views across Rochdale and beyond.   

 

  

 

Page 72



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

Key views and vistas 

 

 

 

 

As Rooley Moor Road rises up the slope of 

the Moor, there are panoramic views 

above and below Catley Lane Head and 

from Fern Hill and Knacks Lane. It used to 

be said that you could see the fireworks at 

Belle Vue in Manchester on a clear night. 

From the road, there are also attractive 

views to East and West, towards 

vernacular farm buildings in the middle 

distance. The centre of the hamlet has 

quite an enclosed character although the 

gaps in development afford views across 

the fields (Wetton, 2015). 

 

 

A view from Knacks Lane down Rooley 

Moor Road towards Rochdale 

Page 73



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

  
2. Rochdale viewed from the Southern edge of the suggested conservation area 

3. A view from the main fishing spot next to Smallshaw Farm 

 

Page 74



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

4. A view from Rooley Moor Road towards Hunger Hill Farm 

 

5. Another view from Rooley Moor Road towards Hunger Hill Farm 

 

Page 75



20 
 

  

6. Smallshaw Farm from Smallshaw Lane 

 

7. A view from Smallshaw Road towards the reservoir and the fishing area  

 

Page 76



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

Architectural character  

 

There is very little in the built environment which detracts from its distinctive local character. 

Typical building types are the vernacular stone terraced houses and farm buildings. Many 

have local stone slate roofs, although some have been replaced with Welsh slate or 

concrete tile roofs. The few 20th century additions are constructed in stone (with one 

exception of a brick detached house). A typical terrace in the hamlet sets back from the 

street has well preserved original pavements. As an exception some terraces in the centre of 

the village are built up to the street, while some have small front gardens with low stone 

boundary walls with a variety of copings (Wetton, 2015).  Many of the unlisted buildings in 

Catley Lane Head are also of architectural interest and would be regarded as undesignated 

heritage assets; they show the development of the hamlet. 

 

Traditional building materials 

 

The vernacular building materials used in Catley Lane Head form a key component of its 

heritage and clearly show the local geology.  

 Stone slate roofs 

 Dry stone walls 

 Sandstone 

 Painted timber was traditionally used for windows 

 Stone setted roads 

 

  

Page 77



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

Significant structures, roads, elements, buildings 

 

 

Cotton Famine Road 

To the north of the hamlet, beyond cattle grids and the bus turning circle, lays a long setted 

section of Rooley Moor Road with stone kerbs and drainage channels at the sides. The width 

of the setted road from the Ding Quarry entrance to Catley Lane Head varies from 4.5m to 

5.5m with the number of setts across the road varying from 12 along the narrow sections to 24 

at Catley Lane Head. By averaging the width of the road, the total number of setts has been 

estimated at 327,600.  

The first official mention of the road was in 1729, when Godman quotes the Lancashire 

Quarter Session as recording: ‘The Court doth enlarge the time to the inhabitants of Catley 

Lane for the repairs of the highway in Spotland from Spotland Bridge to Gorse Hill Leach ‘till 

the Midsummer sessions.’ (Wetton, 2015). The road is known as the ‘Cotton Famine Road’ 

because of its links the American civil war. Number of large public works  were commissioned 

during the Civil War when cotton import stopped.  

 

The Cotton Famine Road is an important part of the hamlet’s, but also national and 

international heritage.  

A section of the Cotton Famine Road 

Page 78



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

Smallshaw Farmhouse 

This Grade II listed building is built on a three unit plan with a projecting two storey porch, a 

rear wall fireplace and chimney stack and a 20th century lean-to addition to the left gable. It 

retains windows of 4 lights (now 2), 6 lights and 4 lights with recessed ovolo-moulded mullions, 

and hoodmoulds with spiral stops. The central window has a king mullion. The upper floor has 

flat-faced mullions of 3, 4 and 3-(with mullions removed) lights. The porch has a moulded 

door opening with inscribed lintel and slightly overhanging upper storey separated by a 

moulded band. There is an attached barn with a full-height cart entry, stone paving in front 

of the house and associated buildings across the yard.  

 

 

  

Page 79



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

Brownhill Farm 

 

Brown Hill Farm is a laithe house (barn and house under one long roof) with what appears to 

be an earlier wing which may date from the 18th century with two infilled 3-light mullioned 

windows and an infilled doorway with a stone surround of large blocks on the north elevation 

and a similar doorway on the south elevation. The wing has been converted to a barn and 

the house is now in the central section (Wetton, 2015).  

  

Brownhill Farm 

 

Page 80



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

Hunger Hill Farm 

Further afield from the road lie more isolated farmsteads, of which some are of architectural 

interest. Hunger Hill Farmhouse to the south appears to have been constructed in three 

phases and may date from the 18th century.  It retains 2 and 3 light mullioned windows with 

three sets of long windows on the north elevation at first floor level which indicate a former 

use as weaving sheds.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Terraced houses 

The hamlet itself contains a number of short terraces. Numbers 725-733 Rooley Moor Road 

are partly constructed from narrow coursed stone and may date from the 18th century.  The 

rest are built of larger blocks and may be later; one retains a small stone outhouse built 

against the boundary wall. The short terrace 

opposite at 780-784 is dated 1848 and retains 

stone window and door surrounds and stone 

chimneys. To the north of number 784 is a two-

storey building with a monopitch roof which 

may be a former workshop and retains two 

stone window surrounds on the first floor, 

although a large doorway has been inserted 

under a modern steel joist. A local resident 

remembers this being used as a garage, 

although it is likely that it had a previous use. 

725-733 Rooley Moor Road 

 

Hunger Hill Farm 

 

Page 81



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Barnside next door is a modern building constructed from stone in a contemporary style but 

with similar stone window surrounds to the older buildings.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Doldrums, at 812-818 and Kings Bridge (dated 1885) at 761-765 are further examples of 

short 19th century terraces, with stone door surrounds and stone window lintels and sills; they 

are believed to have been built for quarry workers. There is a well in the wall opposite 

numbers 812-818 which is fed from the village well located behind Barnside and marked on 

the 1910 map. Number 1 Smallshaw Road is similar in style, although it is a detached house. 

Numbers 7-23 Smallshaw Road is another terrace, although built in two phases of which 9-23 

are earlier, lower in height and with simple stone detailing.  Number 7 was originally 

constructed as two houses, of which one had a shop on the ground floor, and has corniced 

doorways with a taking-in door at the side converted to a window. Smallshaw Road is 

bordered by a stone wall with flat copings while the wall on the south side has two infilled 

stiles which would have provided access to the reservoir (Wetton, 2015). 

 

 

  

Potentially a former workshop 

 

Modern building on Rooley Moor Road 

 

Doldrums and Kings Bridge 

 

Page 82



27 
 

Historic walls  

 

 

 

Traditional flag wall typical of the Rochdale 

area 

Dry stone walling showing half round tooled copings 

Infilled gateway A ginnel 

Stone Gate post with evidence of the former 

gate 

Water trough built into the wall 

Page 83



28 
 

Paving

 

 

 

  

 

  

Wide pavements built using local stone flags 

Road quality and use of materials varies 

Page 84



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

Gardens, green spaces and biodiversity 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

There are a variety of green spaces, a 

stream running through the hamlet and well 

kept private gardens meet the farmland, 

creating an interesting landscape. They all 

contribute to the character of the hamlet. 

Page 85



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

Farming 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Farming continues to be an important part of the hamlets daily life 

Page 86



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

CHARACTER APPRAISAL 

 

General character and plan form 
 

 

The majority of buildings in Catley Lane Head are well restored using acceptable materials 

and elements, however there are some negative contemporary additions as well as ruins 

that can be seen as problematic and need improvement.  One of the aims of creating a 

conservation area is to prevent further harmful development.

Positive contribution 

 

Historic and contemporary elements 

Historic walls, footways and setted roads form an 

interesting relationship with contemporary gardens 

situated between terraced houses on Smallshaw 

Road and one of the ponds.  

 

Page 87



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

Preservation of historic elements 

This historic shop (images below) has been converted into residential use but still retains 

several historic features such as the street sign, post box and stone detailing around the 

former shop window.  

A number of other historic details can still be found on buildings, such as the remains of a 

boot scraper and date stones. 

  
Shop a t 7 Smallshaw Road, 1958. Private 

Collection, and the same building in 2016 

 

A boot scraper on Smallshaw Road 

 

Historic date stones 

 

Page 88



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

Negative contribution 

 

 

 

Abandoned and deteriorating structures  

Even though the majority of structures in the 

hamlet are in active use, there are some 

historic buildings that are deteriorating. Some 

of these were agricultural buildings although 

the brick building above appears to have 

been an electric substation.   

Some unadopted roads are poorly 

maintained and roofs of vacant buildings 

have collapsed, including the barn roof at 

the Grade II listed Smallshaw Farm.  

 

 

 

 
  

Page 89



34 
 

Inappropriate materials and structures 

It is increasingly typical to see uPVC 

windows used on historic buildings. This 

modern material harms the character of a 

conservation area, particularly when the 

configuration is different to the original 

windows. 

 

A number of dormers have been added 

on terraces on Smallshaw Road. These 

distract from the historic character of the 

buildings.  

There are very few modern buildings in the 

settlement. We have regarded the more 

recent building on Rooley Moor Road as 

neutral as it uses materials that 

complement the vernacular buildings 

within the hamlet.  

However, there is also one modern 

building on Smallshaw Road that uses red 

brick which is an alien material in this area 

and harms the character of the area. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Dormers on historic terraces 

 

Use of uPVC windows 

 

A modern red brick building 

 

Page 90



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

 

SWOT Analysis 
 

Buildings in Catley Lane Head are generally in good condition and well maintained but there 

are examples of the use of inappropriate materials. Weaknesses and opportunities for 

improvement should be identified.  

 

Strengths:  

 The rural character of the hamlet. 

 Low vacancy rates.  

 Survival of historic details. 

 The historic Rooley Moor Road (setted Cotton Famine Road) 

 Well preserved vernacular architecture from the 17th to the 19th century 

 Rural landscape with the remains of local industry 

 Dry stone walls and other significant local features such as flag walling, stone setts 

and pavements and a historic street pattern 

 Views over Rochdale and the moors 

 Historic integrity along Smallshaw Road 

 

 

Weaknesses: 

 Use of UPVC windows: the majority of windows have been replaced with modern 

examples, with designs out of keeping with the character of the historic buildings. 

 Some stone slate roofs have been replaced with concrete tiles, and dormers 

have also been inserted. In some places concrete walls have been built in a 

predominantly stone hamlet. 

 Some stone pavements and areas of stone setting on the historic roads have 

been replaced with asphalt and concrete (Wetton, 2015). 

 Derelict structures, including the barn at Smallshaw Farm and former garage on 

Rooley Moor Road.  

 Clutter, particularly on the site of the smallholding east of Rooley Moor Road 

between Smallshaw Road and Knacks Lane, where a number of small derelict 

structures, small buildings, sheds and trailers create an eyesore.   

 

Opportunities (reinstatement of historic materials, restoration of derelict buildings, removal of 

clutter): 

 Creating a bus stop/turning circle that uses traditional materials.  

 Replacing patches of tarmac on the Cotton Famine Road with setts. 

 Reinstatement of historic materials. 

Page 91



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

 Restoration of derelict buildings. 

 Removal of clutter.  

 The smallholding could potentially be decluttered. 

 

Threats:  

 Inappropriate development within the conservation area.  

 Inappropriate development within the setting of the conservation area.  Because of 

the extensive views from the hamlet the setting extends for some distance into the 

hills. 

 Further piecemeal alteration and removal of historic detailing such as roof coverings, 

windows, road surfaces and walling. 

  

Page 92



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

CONCLUSION 
  

This appraisal determines that there is special architectural or historic interest in 

Catley Lane Head, the character or appearance of which it is desirable to preserve 

or enhance.  The production of a conservation area appraisal has been necessary 

in order to guide the design and layout of future development projects within or in 

the valuable rural setting of the Conservation Area.  

Catley Lane Head demonstrates vernacular architecture which reflects the historic industries 

along the line of historic routes. The evolution of the hamlet is still evident in the built 

environment and landscape, including mill ponds and farmland. The general 

character of the Conservation Area is typified by its use of vernacular architecture 

and materials and its rural setting. This applies not only to the restored textile 

buildings themselves, but also to the historic Cotton Famine Road. The plan form of 

the settlement seen today is a direct result of this relationship between the 

development of industry in the area and built environment, with mill ponds forming a 

focal point of the hamlet. 

 

 

 

  

Page 93



CATLEY LANE HEAD 
 
 

 

REFERENCES 
 

Anon. A Brief History of Rooley Moor Road [nd]. Held at Touchstones Local Studies Library. 

Handley, J. History of Lanehead Sunday School. Re-printed from ‘Light and Love’. Available 

at (6.07.2016): http://media.wix.com/ugd/90b905_4c2cf6b5c08e44c5828105e352e18bcc.pdf 

Marshall, A. ‘Like a Ribbon in the Sky’, Rochdale Observer, 2.04.1977, p51  

Milestone Repository Society 

Nevell, M, Ilradil, I, 2003. Rooley Moor Road, Rochdale, Greater Manchester. An 

Archeological Desk-Based Assessment of the line of the Road. The University of Manchester. 

Pevsner, N, 2004. Lancashire: Manchester and the South East (Pevsner Architectural Guides: 

Buildings of England). Yale University Press. 

Watton, J. 2015. Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Area, Rochdale Heritage Appraisal. Chesire: 

Jenny Wetton Conservation. 

 

Conservation Area Appraisal: Prickshaw and Broadley Fold. 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

Page 94



Document is Restricted

Page 95

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 97

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	8 Minutes
	9 Rochdale Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 2017/18
	Append. 1 for Rochdale Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 2017/18

	10 Rochdale Township Funds Review
	Appendix1 - Rochdale Township Funds Review 29June2017
	Appendix 2 Rochdale Township Funds Review 29 June 2017
	Appendix 3 - Rochdale Township Funds Review
	Appendix 4 - Rochdale Township Funds Review
	Appendix 5 - Rochdale Township Funds Review
	Appendix 6 - Rochdale Township Funds Review

	11 Catley Lane Head Conservation Area Appraisal
	20170621112741_007174_0013906_CATLEYLANEHEADJune2017forconsultation

	13 Disposal of Surplus Land at Linnet Hill, Rochdale
	Append. 1 for Disposal of Surplus Land at Linnet Hill, Rochdale




